FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
TUESDAY, JANUARY 11, 2022 AT 12:00pm
VIA ZOOM MEETING ONLY
Link to Join:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82101142651?pwd=YjBLa295RHQ1b0lBQWwwODRTNDRHQT09

Phone number for voice access: 1 (669) 900 9128
Meeting ID: 821 0114 2651
Passcode: 527606
PURSUANT TO GOVERNOR NEWSOM'S
EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, THE MEETING WILL BE HELD BY TELECONFERENCE AND/OR VIDEO CONFERENCE ONLY. THE PUBLIC
MAY PARTICIPATE BY JOINING THE ZOOM MEETING
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82101142651?pwd=YjBLa295RHQ1b0lBQWwwODRTNDRHQT09
AND SUBMITTING THEIR PUBLIC COMMENTS IN A LIVE MEETING FORMAT. ANY EMAILS SENT TO RETHINKER@RETHINKWASTE.ORG
WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE COMMITTEE PRIOR TO THE MEETING.
TELECONFERENCE PARTICIPANTS
ALL COMMITTEE MEMBERS WILL PARTICIPATE BY TELECONFERENCE AND/OR VIDEO CONFERENCE PURSUANT TO GOVERNOR
NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20
PURSUANT TO RALPH M. BROWN ACT, GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953, ALL VOTES SHALL BE BY ROLL CALL DUE TO ALL
MEMBERS PARTICIPATING BY TELECONFERENCE AND/OR VIDEO CONFERENCE
ANY REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION SHOULD BE ADDRESSED TO CYNDI URMAN AT
CURMAN@RETHINKWASTE.ORG.

AGENDA
1. Roll Call
2. Public Comment
Persons wishing to address the Committee on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is limited to two minutes. If
there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker cards from those
submitted to speak during this time. The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the Meeting. If the item
you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Committee may briefly respond to statements made or
questions posed as allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2). The Committee’s 's general policy is to refer
items to staff for attention, or have a matter placed on a future agenda for a more comprehensive action or report and formal public
discussion and input at that time.

3. Executive Director’s Welcome (Verbal)

p. 3

4. Consent Calendar
Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these
items unless members of the Committee, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action. Items removed from the
Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion.

A.

Approval of Minutes from the October 12, 2021 Finance Committee Meeting

ACTION p. 7

5. Review and Recommendation for Approval of Audited Financial Statements for the 6-month Period ending
December 31. 2020
ACTION p. 17
6. Review and Recommendation for Approval of the 2022 SBWMA Investment Policy

ACTION p. 53

7. Resolution Approving the Revised Reserve Policy

ACTION p. 73

8. Review and Provide Feedback on the SBWMA’s Operating Budget Data tables
MEMBER AGENCIES
BELMONT * BURLINGAME * EAST PALO ALTO * FOSTER CITY * HILLSBOROUGH * MENLO PARK * REDWOOD CITY
* SAN CARLOS * SAN MATEO * COUNTY OF SAN MATEO * WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
1/4/2022

FULL PACKET PAGE 1 of 88

p. 81

9. Bond Refunding Balance Report Out

p. 87

10. Finance Committee Member Comments
11. Adjourn

MEMBER AGENCIES
BELMONT * BURLINGAME * EAST PALO ALTO * FOSTER CITY * HILLSBOROUGH * MENLO PARK * REDWOOD CITY
* SAN CARLOS * SAN MATEO * COUNTY OF SAN MATEO * WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT
1/4/2022
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_________________________________________________________________________________________
DRAFT MINUTES
SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE
October 12, 2021, 12:00PM
Via Zoom Tele or Video Conference
Call To Order: 12:02PM
1. Roll Call
Member
Michael Brownrigg
Rebecca
Mendenhall
Rich Lee
Al Royce
Jay Benton

Present

Absent
X

X
X
X
X

SBWMA Staff Members Present: Joe La Mariana, John Mangini, Cyndi Urman, Jean Savaree, Hilary Gans, Julia
Au, Grant Ligon
Others Present: Derek Rampone, City of Redwood City
2.

Public Comment

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.3(a), members of the public wishing to address the Committee may do so, and the
comments shall be limited to the Special Meeting notice topic(s). Speakers may join the Zoom meeting via the meeting link and
using the “raise hand” feature and the Clerk of the Board will call on people.

None
3.

Executive Director’s Welcome (Verbal Only)

Executive Director La Mariana welcomed the new committee members Rebecca and Rich, and gave the
following updates:
• There are a handful of RFPs for agency out in the marketplace right now:
o The biggest in the Operations Agreement RFP. That contract that is currently with SBR expires
at the end of 2023. That RFP has been posted and responses are due back January 12, 2022,
for the next 10-year period and includes options for an addition five one-year terms so it could
be up to 15 years.
o The MRF and Transfer station tip floor needs to be resurfaced every couple of years, and staff is
currently out to bid on that project as well.
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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•

o Lastly, the final project that will be going out for RFP is the SB 1383 additional services, and the
contract for those services will be coming to the Board for decision in January.
There are two outstanding issues with SBR that will have major financial impacts to the agency:
o In November of 2019, the Board approved under protest approximately $250,000 in storm water
capture improvements. The work was done last year, but there was not enough rain to assess if
the improvements worked satisfactorily, so if there is more rain this winter this item will come
back to the board for possible financial action
o The CARB rule requiring SBR to transition their long-haul fleet one year before the end of their
contract continues to be an issue that staff is working through with SBR. Staff is trying to find
some workarounds to avoid a $4.5M cost for new trucks one year before a potential change in
contractor, when typically, these costs would be amortized over the life of a 9- or 10-year
contract.

Member Benton asked if there were any residual issues with the Atherton exit.
Executive Director La Mariana answered no, Atherton paid all debts and both parties went their separate ways.
Member Lee commented that since he is new to this role, he would like a list of the major contracts that the
SBWMA has in place. He also wondered who owns the land where the storm water improvements were made.
Executive Director La Mariana answered that all the major contracts are listed on the Agency’s website under
Board Resources https://rethinkwaste.org/about/board-of-directors/board-resources/ . He also noted regarding
the stormwater improvements it is a contractual language interpretation that the Board reviewed extensively in
2018, but he wanted to give this committee a heads up that the issue is still out there and has the potential to
have a financial impact to the rate payers. He noted that it is the legal opinion of the Agency’s General Counsel
Jean Savaree that this responsibility is with the contractor South Bay Recycling.
Member Lee followed up wondering if there would be an opportunity to amend the language so it is clearer
where the responsibility lies.
Executive Director La Mariana answered yes, there will be an opportunity with the new agreement that is
currently in the RFP process to modify that language, and we will have Counsel review that language in the new
agreement.
Counsel Savaree added that she did not believe the language in the current agreement was ambiguous, but
since SBR did, she would look at it with the next agreement.
4.

Consent Calendar
Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion
on these items unless members of the Committee, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action. Items
removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion.

A.
B.

Approval of Minutes from the June 8, 2021, Finance Committee Meeting
Approval the 2022 SBWMA Finance Committee Meeting Calendar

Motion/Second: Royce/Benton
Roll Call Vote:
4A: 2-0-2-1
4B: 4-0-0-1
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Member
Michael Brownrigg
Al Royce
Jay Benton
Rebecca Mendenhall
Rich Lee
5.

Yes
X
X
B
B

No

Abstain

Absent
X

A
A

Review and Recommendation for Approval of FY 2022 Operating Budget and Cap Ex Review

Executive Director La Mariana introduced the item, noting that this has been a really difficult year to put together
a budget, and in some cases, we have made conservative estimates which will be pointed out along the way.
He also noted that we have transitioned our fiscal year from a traditional government fiscal year to align with the
calendar year, so the fiscal year now starts on January 1 and closes on December 31. We accomplished this
with a short 6-month period in 2020. . One of the reasons for the transition was to align the operations budget
with all the major contracts and rate setting for the member agencies that are calendar based. However, the
facility property insurance is still on a FY, so we will try to adjust that going forward.
Staff Mangini then went over the highlights of the proposed 2022 budget.
• Projecting 1.2 million in net income to reserves
• Added an additional $1 to the franchise tip fee over projected 2022 tip fee. When the board approved
the mid-year budget, they also approved a projected 2022 tip fee. In order to project a total revenue
requirement that goes along with the Recology compensation application a franchise fee for 2022
needed to be estimated. The additional $1 tip fee was added because staff is planning for the SB1383
costs to be brought in house.
• Projecting volumes to stay down, but there has been some recovery in volumes as the vaccine roll out,
but staff has not seen them come back as much as predicted, so you will see some of the revenue and
cost categories being adjusted downward.
• Commodity revenue has been strong this year compared to recent history, but with so much market
uncertainty he recommends being conservative and having a blended average of $137/ton as a revenue
projection in the budget.
• Additional costs for operating the Organics to Energy processing have been added to compensate SBR
for doing that work, have been added to this budget, but are offset by decreases in transportation and
disposal fees which will hopefully off set each other.
The committee discussed the change in staff costs. Member Mendenhall noted that staff costs were going up
significantly, she thought it would be helpful in the staff report to discuss which staff was new and which staff
was being restored after freezing positions during Covid. Executive Director La Mariana answered with the
downturn in the economy with the pandemic staff wanted to be prudent with staffing decisions. There are five
fellow positions that run three programs. The tours program, the in-school education program, and the public
spaces program. When in-person tours went virtual, and schools could not allow staff on campus those fellows
hour were reduced and when positions were vacated, they were not filled. Now that those programs are back up
and running, we need all five fellows to run those programs. Two positions had an adjustment due to a shift in
responsibilities, and an additional position was added because of the SB1383 mandate to manage those
programs, so that is a newly created position as of April. Member Mendenall suggested expanding the staff
report for this section to explain the increases in staffing.
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The committee then discussed the increase in reserves. Member Mendenhall commented that typically
government does not budget a surplus, but that she understood there are a lot of uncertainties related to
insurance and SB1383. Staff Mangini noted that this has come up in the past and he changed the wording so
that instead of it saying net income it now says net income to reserves. He also noted that net income is used to
pay bond principal payments, and for capital. He suggested that he could add columns underneath the net
income to reserve that explains what net income to reserves is doing to the net position. The committee agreed
that this would be helpful.
The committee discussed the Organics-to-Energy program. Member Lee wondered where the recycled water
comes from and what the end product methane would be used for. The committee agreed to move this
conversation offline because it is a lengthy conversation but noted that as the new San Mateo wastewater
treatment plant comes online if they are interested in receiving material to get in touch with SBWMA staff soon.
The committee then discussed specific line items in the budget:
• Member Lee asked why there is a 34% increase in this line item. Staff Au answered in the new
amended and restated franchise agreement printing for bill inserts became the responsibility of the
SBWMA.
• Member Lee asked what the line item for airport feasibility consultants was for. Executive Director La
Mariana answered that staff is in preliminary conversations with San Mateo County, about the possibility
of acquiring or long-term leasing a small portion the County owned land at the San Carlos airport (1-2)
acres which is adjacent to the Shoreway facility, to be able to have space to bring in some innovative
projects including the charging stations for the electric vehicles. This money has been included in the
budget to do see if this feasible from a wetland’s standpoint, and technical standpoint.
Member Benton suggested adding trend lines related to the budget summary presentation especially since
COVID happened at the same time as the transition to a calendar year budget. Staff Mangini noted he would
make that change to help with the narrative.
Member Benton commented that this budget hangs on three points, 1) reduced volume revenue; 2) reduced
commodity revenue, and 3) a sharp increase in operating expense and administrative expenses.
Regarding reduced volume revenue: Member Benton noted that the increase in operating expense is due to
SB1383 implementation, but wondered why the revenues are low, and if the presentation does a good enough
job of explaining. He wondered if there was a fundamental issue that cause the reduction. Staff Mangini noted
that most of the volume does not come from specific customers that have accounts with SBR. It mostly comes
through as an individual customer, and we do not have data tracking on specific customers in those categories
which makes it difficult, but that said, SBR might have some insights as to what is driving the reduction. He noted
he would ask SBR and if it is relevant, add it to the staff report. Member Benton noted that the SBWMA runs a
business, and it is easy to say the reduction is COVID related, but noted that at the mid-year, budget review staff
was concerned about being competitive with gate fees in the area, so if this is a competitive issue that is
important in understanding what to do to bring revenue back up.
Regarding reduced commodity revenue: Member Benton supported staff’s conservative approach because it has
been so volatile.
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Regarding increased operating expense and administrative expenses: Member Benton noted that is a
substantial number which comes back to SB1383 implementation. He reiterated that he was worried the Agency
was taking on too much of the cost and that those should be pushed back to the individual city agencies. Staff
Mangini commented that it is important to differentiate between the collection portion of the costs and the
administrative portions of the cost. The collection costs will be allocated based on the service level adjustment
methodology set forth in the Recology Franchise Agreements. There are small SB1383 costs anticipated not in
this budget related to SBR for mandatory material sampling that we do not have cost projections from SBR yet,
so those are still outstanding. For the collection costs the cost increases will be on those accounts that need to
add green carts, but for a city like Hillsborough, there will be little to no increase because there is no commercial,
and all the residential accounts already have green carts. He concluded that for the purposes of this budget the
administrative part of the SB1383 costs are included, which is allocated to member agencies based on the
tipping fees paid on the volume that comes into the facility from that specific agency.
The committee discussed reserves and insurance. Member Benton commented that reserves were not going up
in 2022 to cover the increased deductible for insurance. Staff Mangini noted that the deductible for 2022 is the
same, so that number was not changed, but asked the committee for their feedback on how to manage reserves.
Member Benton noted that the concept the Board suggested when they voted to go with the higher deductible
was to keep putting money away to build a much larger reserve to cover up to a million dollars out of our pocket
for the increased deductible if there was another catastrophic fire, so that number should not be a static number.
Staff Mangini commented that he would consult with the agency’s insurance broker to calculate an increased
insurance reserve and adjust the reserve budget accordingly. Member Royce commented that he supported
Member Benton’s approach but recommended calling it a self-insurance fund account.
Member Benton asked why the capital reserve was going down from year to year. Staff Mangini answered that
three things impact reserve balances. 1) net income projected for the year. 2) costs to pay the bond principal,
and 3) capital that will be spent during the year. So once the bond principle is paid and the budget for capital is
set it reduced the net position in reserves. Member Benton asked for clarification on mid-year capital reserves
numbers versus 2022 numbers. Staff Mangini commented that there is a portion in the mid-year budget needed
to draw funds for the Organics-to-Energy capital project that is not complete yet. Those funds will be drawn up
from the bond account in 2021 before the close of the year, which is helping to boost up the uncommitted
reserves shown at mid-year. Member Benton asked staff to look at the reserve tables noting he thought they did
not track. Staff Mangini noted he would check that.
Member Mendenhall recommended showing the inflows and outflows to the reserve table. Staff Mangini replied
that he would add the inflows and outflows to the reserve table.
Staff Mangini concluded the operations budget discussion by noting that he budgeted conservatively to be
conscious of budgeting to a number that will cover debt coverage which is why he recommends some net
income to reserves, and often there are better results than what is in the budget because of the conservative
nature of the budget.
The committee discussed the capital expenditure budget. Staff Gans highlighted the large capital projects for
2022. Including the fuel island removal project, which is in engineering phase during 2022, the routine
maintenance capital items on lines 1-7, masterplan projects which are still being defined, and EV fleet
conversion. He noted that staff does not recommend expanding the Organics-to-Energy pilot into a full organic
extracting project. The MRF upgrade project is now being broken up into a Phase II and Phase III. Phase II was
going to be $6M, but now is split between the two phases. The reason being that a potential new contractor may
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start in 2024 and will likely have some ideas of improvements, and we want to collaborate with them if those
ideas and improvements make sense.
Executive Director La Mariana commented that there is still about half the bond refunding money left for the
projects marked bond funded which will not have any impact on the rate payers.
Member Mendenhall expressed concerned about spending money on a Styrofoam densifier when so many
agencies are working to ban Styrofoam, even though it is low dollars.
Member Benton made a motion to recommend approval of the presented budget once it incorporated all the
committee comments to the full Board.
Member Royce seconded
Member
Michael Brownrigg
Al Royce
Jay Benton
Rebecca Mendenhall
Rich Lee
6.

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent
X

X
X
X
X

Review and Recommendation for Approval of Audited Financial Statements for the 6-month Period
ending December 31. 2020

Staff Mangini gave an overview of the staff report noting that this is the unqualified opinion of Maze and
Associates the independent auditor represents fairly the position of the SBWMA for the shortened financial
period of July 1, 2020, to December 31, 2020. He did note that it is difficult to compare these numbers since they
are for a shortened period.
Member Royce asked who uses this financial statement, and if the auditors discussed restating the proforma to
account for the new accounting period. Staff Mangini answered that the report is for the investors, and that the
auditors did not mention restating 2020 so that there could be comparable periods.
Derek Rampone noted that the only way to restate would be to go back and perform another audit, but that the
issue never came up in conversation with Maze.
Staff Mangini also noted that there is a calendar year compilation report that could be used in this circumstance.
Staff Mangini commented that the calendar year financial statements are posted on the website and were
approved by this committee in June, so there is comparative data available on the financial information for users
of this data.
Member Mendenhall noted that in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) there is leeway to talk
about the annualized comparison, so she suggested asking Maze to put a column in to talk about an annualized
comparison that would tie back to the MD&A narrative. She commented that for the record and committee
members knowledge she did send these questions to Staff in advance of the meeting. She also suggested
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________
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changing the narrative in the MD&A to bullet points to make it easier for rating agencies to review and explain
the why the switch to the calendar year.
Member Mendenhall then commented on Atherton’s exit. She noted that Atherton’s exit cost was posted to
operation revenue and thought staff should have a conversation with Maze if it should really be posted there.
She thought it should be a non-operating expense since it is not regular in nature. And she suggested a footnote
about how staff come up with the calculation for the dollar amount for Atherton to leave the Agency and the
rationale behind it, to add more transparency to the report.
Lastly Member Mendenhall suggested adding narrative to the MD&A footnotes regarding the reserve policies
and adding narrative about the new reserve for self-insurance, and why it was set up.
Staff Mangini noted that the reserve policy has not been amended, so the self-insurance reserve was set up as a
sub-emergency reserve fund, so it might be appropriate to change the reserve policy and then add the language
Member Mendenhall suggests to the MD&A.
Member Royce commented that he thought the investment policy had been changed post 12/31/20, so that
needs to be noted as well. Staff Mangini noted that the committee did recommend that change, but the full Board
has not approved that change yet, the change in investment policy will be on the Board’s January 2022 agenda.
Staff Mangini commented that this item needs to be altered. Especially related to how the revenue from the
Atherton is being classified which will change the audit.
The committee decided to review the audit report with the suggested changes at the next meeting before it is
recommended to the Board.
7.

Finance Committee Member Comments

Member Lee asked if price of commodities and the quality of commodities correlates to the amount in operations
budget that is spend on education. Executive Director La Mariana answered that the reason the environmental
education program is such a big part of what the Agency does is to get the right stuff in the right carts and the
wrong stuff out, because there is significant costs associated with processing the carts and getting the
contamination out, the conclusion is that that cleaner the material, the better it is for the Agency’s financial
position.
8.

Adjourn 2:04PM
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Agenda Item 5
Review and Recommendation for Approval of Audited Financial
Statements for the 6-month Period ending December 31. 2020

Following is the DRAFT Staff Report to be presented at the January 27, 2022 SBWMA
Board of Directors Meeting for Finance Committee Review and Feedback
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager
January 27, 2022 Board of Directors Meeting
DRAFT For Finance Committee Review: Resolution Accepting the Audited Financial
Statements for the Six-Month Period ending December 31, 2020

Board Action
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2022-XX attached hereto
authorizing the following action:
Accept the South Bayside Waste Management Authority’s audited Annual Financial Statements (see
Exhibit A to the Resolution) for the six-month fiscal year ending December 31, 2020 as prepared by the
SBWMA’s audit firm, Maze & Associates.
Summary
The purpose of the financial statements is to present a summary of the financial position of the Authority for the
fiscal year. These reports have been reviewed by the Board Finance Committee on January 11th, 2022 which
recommends approval. The Finance Committee previously reviewed Financial Statements at its October 2021
meeting and recommended the below edits, which are incorporated into Exhibit A.
Finance Committee recommended edits, which are now incorporated into Exhibit A:
• Reclassify Atherton’s withdrawal payment to Non-Operating Revenue
• Expand on Note 1 regarding Atherton’s withdrawal from the JPA explaining the process and Board
approval of Atherton’s liquidation of existing debts, obligations, and liabilities
• Explain why the Agency aligned its fiscal year with the calendar year necessitating a 6-month period
• Include a proforma column in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) annualizing the 6-month
financials for comparative purposes
• Add an explanation of the newly created Sub-Emergency Reserve for Self-Insurance Fund
The final step in the formal process of preparing these financial statements is to present them to the Board for its
acceptance.
Analysis
The financial statements of the SBWMA for fiscal year ending December 31, 2020, have been prepared by the
City of Redwood City Administrative Services Department and examined by the independent auditing firm Maze &
Associates and SBWMA staff. It is the unqualified opinion of the audit firm that the financial statements present
fairly the financial position of the SBWMA as of December 31, 2020, and that the financial statements were
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. No exceptions or qualifications were found.
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Financial Condition Summary
As shown in Table 2 of the Audit report, total net position increased by $2.0 million to $24.6 million. The
unrestricted net assets (Unrestricted Reserve) remained flat at $16.3 million at December 31, 2020 (see Table 1
and 4 in the Audit report).
General Operating Results
Table 1 below contains the financial results for the six-month period ending December 31, 2020. The six-month
results have been annualized on Table 1 and compared to fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 expressed in a
percentage variance.

Table 1 – Financial Results

FY2020

FY2020

Annualized based
12 months ending Six months ending on 6 month ending
6/30/2020
12/31/2020
12/31/20

Variance
%

T ip Fee Revenue $
Commodity Revenue $

45,660,060 $
5,856,511 $

23,069,176 $
3,015,844 $

46,138,352
6,031,688

1%
3%

Other Revenue 1 $
Total Revenues
$

19,299 $
51,535,870 $

21,728 $
26,106,748 $

43,456
52,213,496

125%
1%

Shoreway Operations Expense
SBWMA Program Expense
Franchise Fees
Depreciation Expense
Total Expenses
$
Operating Income
$
Investment Income, Other $
Withdrawal Payment - Atherton
Loss on sale of capital assets
Interest Expense
Grant Revenue

40,325,760
3,199,159
2,178,179
3,011,979
48,715,077 $
2,820,793 $
768,838 $
$
(34,134)
(2,802,192)
500,000

21,054,283
1,648,322
1,101,827
1,572,095
25,376,527
730,221
250,382
2,169,211
(1,221,923)
120,000

42,108,566
3,296,644
2,203,654
3,144,190
50,753,054
1,460,442
500,764
2,169,211
(2,443,846)
120,000

4%
3%
1%
4%
4%
-48%
-35%
n/a
-100%
-13%
-76%

$
SubTotal excl. Fire Related
Fire Related, net
$
CHANGE in NET POSITION

1,253,305 $

2,047,891 $

1,806,571

44%

1,253,305 $

2,047,891 $

1,806,571

44%

$
$
$
$

Variance explanations:
Please see the Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) of Exhibit A for a narrative on financial results.
Variance explanations are difficult to analyze, as the previous period contained a full year of revenue and
expenses compared to this six-month period ending December 31, 2020. The six-month results have been
annualized in the Table 2 and 3 of the MDA for comparative purposes.
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Long-Term Debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, the SBWMA had bond debt outstanding of $58,424,850, a decrease of $1.1 million.
Long-term debt consists of Series 2019A and 2019B Refunding Revenue Bonds that were issued to refund the 2009A
Revenue Bonds and to finance the construction of various improvements and acquisition of certain associated
equipment to the material recovery facility and transfer station.
Revenue Bonds 2019

6/30/2020
$59,519,033

12/31/2020
$58,424,850

Payment of principal on the 2019 bonds began on September 1, 2020. Additional information on the SBWMA’s long-term
debt can be found in note (4) to the accompanying financial statements.
Fiscal Impact
There is no financial impact associated with the adoption of this Resolution.
Attachments:
Resolution 2022-xx. Accepting the Authority’s Six Month Audited Financial Statements ending December 31, 2020
Exhibits A – SBWMA Audited Annual Financial Statements for the Period July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020
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RESOLUTION NO. 2022-XX
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
PERIOD JULY 1, 2020 TO DECEMBER 31, 2020
WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority contracted with the audit firm Maze &
Associates to conduct an audit of the Agency’s financial records in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34; and
WHEREAS, the financial statements for the fiscal year period July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 as
prepared by said firm have been completed and are attached as Exhibit A; and
WHEREAS, it is recommended that the Board accept the financial statements.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby
approves the Annual Financial Report as prepared by Maze & Associates for the fiscal year period July 1, 2020 to
December 31, 2020.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority,
County of San Mateo, State of California on the 27th day of January, 2022, by the following vote:
Agency
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough
Menlo Park

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo
West Bay Sanitary Dist

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-XX was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 27, 2022.

ATTEST:

Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To Members of the Board of Directors of the
South Bayside Waste Management Authority
San Carlos, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the South Bayside Waste Management
Authority (Authority), California, as of December 31, 2020 and for the period July 1, 2020 to
December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2020, and the changes in financial position and
cash flows for the period July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Change in End of Accounting Period
As discussed in Note 1i, the Authority changed its end of accounting period from June 30 to December
31. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis as listed in the Table of Contents be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August
27, 2021 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pleasant Hill, California
November 19, 2021
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2020
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section presents an overview and analysis
of the financial performance of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) for
the six months ended December 31, 2020. It should be read in conjunction with the audited
financial statements that follow this section.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The SBWMA’s financial statements include:
Statement of Net Position presents information on the SBWMA’s assets and liabilities as of the
fiscal year-end, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Authority is improving or deteriorating.
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the
SBWMA’s operations over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position
changed during the fiscal year. These statements can be used as an indicator of the extent to which
the Authority has successfully recovered its costs through user fees and other charges.
Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational,
capital, non-capital, and investing activities. The statement summarizes the annual flow of cash
receipts and cash payments, without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the
obligation or receipt and exclude non-cash accounting measures of depreciation or amortization of
assets.
Notes to Financial Statements provide information that is essential to a full understanding of the
financial statements that is not displayed on the face of the financial statements.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The following table summarizes the Authority’s change in net position from last fiscal year to the
six months ended December 31, 2020.
Table 1
Comparative Net Position
June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020

Current and other assets
Capital assets, net of depreciation
Total assets
Long-term debt outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

June 30, 2020
$ 39,417,871
50,518,853
89,936,724

December 31, 2020
$
41,164,495
49,731,989
90,896,484

$ Change
$ 1,746,624
(786,864)
959,760

% Change
4.4%
-1.6%
1.1%

59,519,033
7,837,490
67,356,523

58,424,850
7,843,542
66,268,392

(1,094,183)
6,052
(1,088,131)

-1.8%
0.1%
-1.6%

6,407,940
16,172,261
$ 22,580,201

6,203,217
2,076,906
16,347,969
24,628,092

(204,723)
2,076,906
175,708
$ 2,047,891

-3.2%
n/a
1.1%
9.1%

$
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Net Position
The total net position increased by $2.0 million or 9.1% from the prior fiscal year. This increase
is comprised solely of an increase in restricted net position of $2.1 million and an increase in
unrestricted net position of $.1 million, offset by a decrease in net investment in capital assets of
$.2 million.
Total liabilities decreased by $1.1 million or 1.6%. This decrease is primarily attributed to the
reduction in the amount of long-term debt, as a result of the payment of the annual debt service.
More information on the long-term debt is located in the “Long-term Debt” section. There was a
minimal increase of $6,000 or 0.1% in other liabilities.
The largest portion of the Authority’s assets is its investment in net capital assets totaling $49.7
million. These assets are comprised of land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure, less
accumulated depreciation, and are primarily located at the Shoreway Environmental Center. The
actual year-over-year comparison of the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, shows a
decrease of $0.8 million or 1.6% due to capital asset additions of $5.8 million in buildings,
improvements, and equipment, and a decrease of $5.0 million in construction in progress, which
are offset by depreciation expense of $1.6 million. These changes are explained further in the
“Capital Assets” section.
The net investment in capital assets is $6.2 million as of December 31, 2020. It represents the
Authority’s investment in infrastructure and other capital assets, net of amounts borrowed to
finance that investment. It should be noted that these funds are not available for spending because
the capital assets cannot be liquidated to settle liabilities. Therefore, the resources needed to repay
the debt must be provided from other sources. Restricted net position of $2.1 million represents
the withdrawal funds from the Town of Atherton that are in an escrow account. Unrestricted net
position totaling $16.3 million represents the part of net position that can be used to finance
operations.

Results of Operations
The following table summarizes the Authority’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.
Table 2
Comparative Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Six Months Ended December 31, 2020

FY 2020
Revenues
Charges for services
Commodity revenue
Other operating revenues
Withdrawal payment from Atherton
Grant revenue
Investment Income
Total Revenues
Expenses
Operating expenses
Loss on sale of capital assets
Interest expense
Total Expenses
Increase (decrease) in net position
Beginning net position
Ending net position

$ 45,660,060
5,856,511
19,299
500,000
768,838
52,804,708

December 31, 2020*
$

23,069,176
3,015,844
21,728
2,169,211
120,000
250,382
28,646,341

Annualized
(estimate based on
6 months ending
12/31/20)

$ Change
(from FY 2020
to 12 month
estimate)

$

$

46,138,352
6,031,688
43,456
2,169,211
120,000
500,764
55,003,471

% Change

478,292
175,177
24,157
2,169,211
(380,000)
(268,074)
2,198,763

1.0%
3.0%
125.2%
n/a
-76.0%
-34.9%
4.2%

48,715,077
34,134
2,802,192
51,551,403

25,376,527
1,221,923
26,598,450

50,753,054
2,443,846
53,196,900

2,037,977
(34,134)
(358,346)
1,645,497

4.2%
n/a
-12.8%
3.2%

1,253,305
21,326,896
$ 22,580,201

2,047,891
22,580,201
24,628,092

1,806,571
22,580,201
24,386,772

553,266
1,253,305
1,806,571

44.1%
5.9%
8.0%

$

$

$
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While the Statement of Net Position (Table 1) shows the change in financial position, the Statement of
Activities (Table 2 above) provides answers as to the nature and sources of the changes.

Changes in operating revenues for the six months ended December 31, 2020 are comprised of the
following:
 Charges for services, also known as tipping fee revenue, decreased by $22.6 million or
49.5%, from $45.7 million in FY20 to $23.1 million for the six months ended December
31, 2020. On an annualized basis, the charges for services are estimated to be slightly
higher than FY 20.
 Commodity revenue decreased by $2.8 million, or 48.5% from $5.9 million in FY20 to
$3.0 million for the six months ended December 31, 2020. On an annualized basis, the
commodity revenue is estimated to be slightly higher than FY 20.
 Other operating revenues increased by $2.4 thousand from FY20
 Non-operating revenue, which includes a one-time withdrawal payment from the Town of
Atherton in the amount of $2.2 million
 Investment income, which is nonoperating revenue, was $0.5 million less for the six
months ended December 31, 2020, compared to FY20, due to decreased market values of
currently held investments. Even on an annualized basis, the investment income is
estimated to be less than FY 20.
 Grant revenue in the amount of $120 thousand during the six months ended December 31,
2020 from Recology of San Mateo, as part of the CalRecycle program, for the Organics to
Energy Project.
The primary component of operating expenses (83.0%) is related to the Shoreway operations that
include contractually obligated costs incurred to pay the Shoreway operator, and disposal and
processing expenses. The Shoreway operations expense (Table 3) decreased by $19.3 million, or
47.8%, from FY20 to the six months ended December 31, 2020. On an annualized basis, Shoreway
operations expense is estimated to be slightly higher than FY 20.
Table 3 below shows just the operating results of the Authority (excluding depreciation). It
excludes all revenue and expenditure not directly associated with operating activities such as
investment income, grant revenue, and interest expense. For the current fiscal year, operating
results were $2.3 million compared to $5.8 million for the prior fiscal year, a decrease of 23.3%.
Table 3
Operating Results
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Six Months Ended December 31, 2020

FY 2020

December 31, 2020

$ Change

% Change

Annualized Amount
for Six Months Ended
December 31, 2020

Operating Revenue
Charges for Services

$ 45,660,060

Commodity Fee
Other Operating Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

$

23,069,176

$ (22,590,884)

-49.5%

$

46,138,352

5,856,511

3,015,844

(2,840,667)

-48.5%

19,299

21,728

2,429

12.6%

43,456

51,535,870

26,106,748

(25,429,122)

-49.3%

52,213,496

6,031,688

Operating Expense (excl Depn.)
Shoreway Operations

40,325,760

21,054,283

(19,271,477)

-47.8%

42,108,566

Program Admin

3,199,159

1,648,322

(1,550,837)

-48.5%

3,296,644

Franchise Fee

2,178,179

1,101,827

(1,076,352)

-49.4%

Total Operating Expense (excl Depn.)
Total Operating Results (excl Depn.)

2,203,654

$ 45,703,098

$

23,804,432

(21,898,666)

-47.9%

$

47,608,864

$

$

2,302,316

$ (3,530,456)

-60.5%

$

4,604,632

5,832,772

*Six months ended period are not comparable to FY 2020 (12 month period)
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Reserves
Table 4 below reflects the amount of reserves that have been designated by the Board as of June
30, 2020 and December 31, 2020.
Table 4
Unrestricted Reserves Balances
FY 2020
Rate Stabilization Reserve

$

Emergency Reserve
Sub-Emergency Reserve - Self-insurance
Equipment Replacement Reserve
Capital Fund Reserve
Total Unrestricted Reserves

$

4,615,999

December 31, 2020
$

4,617,529

4,615,999

4,617,529

113,985

113,985

766,789

766,789

6,059,489

6,232,137

16,172,261

$

16,347,969

In 2002, the SBWMA Board established a cash reserve policy to set aside certain portions of
unrestricted net position for specific uses in order to protect the short and long-term financial
operation of the Authority. In May 2013, the Board revised the Cash Reserve Policy to accomplish
the goal of more clearly defining the reserve accounts. In November 2018, the Board further
revised the Cash Reserve Policy to include a Capital Reserve Fund to fund future capital projects
that cannot be absorbed in one budget period. The current policy consists of a Rate Stabilization
Reserve, Emergency Reserve, Equipment Replacement Reserve, Capital Fund Reserve, and
Undesignated Reserve. In addition, the Board approved a sub-emergency reserve for selfinsurance in response to an increased property insurance deductible. The Rate Stabilization
Reserve & Emergency Reserve are calculated at up to 10% of operating expenses. Operating
expenses include Shoreway Operations expense, SBWMA program expenses, bond interest
expense, and franchise fees. Operating expenses exclude depreciation, buyback, and household
hazardous waste payments. The Emergency Reserve is to address unexpected and sudden capital
needs or significant one-time increases in Shoreway operating expenses associated with “damage
by natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, or other community emergency scenarios that are not
covered by existing insurance policies”. The current policy prioritizes the order of the accounts
so the Rate Stabilization Reserve is first in priority followed by the Emergency Reserve.
All reserve fund levels are approved by the Board each year as part of the adoption of the fiscal
year budget.

Capital Assets
The following table summarizes changes in the Authority’s capital assets.
Table 5
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Six Months Ended December 31, 2020

Land
Construction in progress
Buildings and systems
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total Net Capital Assets

$

$

FY 2020
14,000,000
8,739,355
36,441,591
24,333,572
(32,995,665)
50,518,853

December 31, 2020
$
14,000,000
3,713,330
41,972,586
24,638,000
(34,591,927)
$
49,731,989

$ Change
(5,026,025)
5,530,995
304,428
(1,596,262)
$
(786,864)
$

% Change
0.0%
-57.5%
15.2%
1.3%
4.8%
-1.6%
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The net capital assets decreased by $0.8 million, or 1.6%, from $50.5 million in FY20 to $49.7
million for the six months ended December 31, 2020. The decrease is the net of the annual $1.6
million depreciation charge, and $0.8 million in capital expenditures to replace equipment,
numerous upgrades to the Shoreway facility and Material Recovery Facility, and the continuation
of the Organics-to-Energy pilot project.
Additional information on the capital assets can be found in Note (4) of the financial statements.

Long-term Debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority had $58.4 million total debt outstanding, a
decrease of $1.1 million, or 1.8%, from $59.5 million in FY 20.
Table 6
Outstanding Debt, Net of Amortized Costs
June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2020

2019A Refunding Revenue Bond
2019B Refunding Revenue Bond
Net Premium 2019A/B
Total

June 30, 2020
$ 31,860,000
16,915,000
10,744,033
$ 59,519,033

December 31, 2020
$
31,860,000
16,065,000
10,499,850
$
58,424,850

$ Change
$
(850,000)
(244,183)
$ (1,094,183)

% Change
-5.0%
-2.3%
-1.8%

Long-term debt consists of Series 2019A and 2019B Refunding Revenue Bonds that were issued
to refund the 2009A Revenue Bonds and to finance the construction of various improvements and
acquisition of certain associated equipment to the Authority’s solid waste materials recovery
facility and transfer station located in the City of San Carlos, CA.
Additional information on the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note (5) to the
accompanying financial statements.
CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our member agencies, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s accountability for the
revenues and expenses in the course of doing business. If you have questions about this report or
need additional financial information, contact the Executive Director, South Bayside Waste
Management Authority, 610 Elm Street, San Carlos, California 94070.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments for operations (Note 2)
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid items
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and investments with fiscal agent (Note 2)
Capital assets (Note 3):
Land
Construction in progress
Building
Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net capital assets
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

$19,076,557
4,376,303
35,375
653,584
24,141,819

17,022,676
14,000,000
3,713,330
41,972,586
24,638,000
(34,591,927)
49,731,989
66,754,665
90,896,484

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Current portion of compensated absences
Long-term debt due in one year (Note 4)
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences due in more than one year
Accrued liabilities (Note 6)
Long-term debt due in more than one year (Note 4)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

5,657,530
772,833
84,380
1,733,365
8,248,108

95,159
1,233,640
56,691,485
58,020,284
66,268,392

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

6,203,217
2,076,906
16,347,969
$24,628,092

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2020 TO DECEMBER 31, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Commodity revenue
Other

$23,069,176
3,015,844
21,728

Total Operating Revenues

26,106,748

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Shoreway operations
SBWMA program administration
Franchise fee - transfer station
Depreciation (Note 4)

21,054,283
1,648,322
1,101,827
1,572,095

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Grant revenue
Withdrawal payment from Atherton
Investment income
Interest expense

25,376,527
730,221

120,000
2,169,211
250,382
(1,221,923)

Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

1,317,670

Change in Net Position

2,047,891

NET POSITION AT JULY 1, 2020
NET POSITION AT DECEMBER 31, 2020

22,580,201
$24,628,092

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2020 TO DECEMBER 31, 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net Cash Flows (used for) Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital assets additions
Retirement of revenue bonds
Interest paid
Net Cash Flows (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal payment from Atherton

$26,693,599
(23,604,566)
(806,326)
2,282,707

280,999
280,999

(785,231)
(1,094,183)
(1,262,007)
(3,141,421)

2,169,211

Net Cash Flows (Used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities

2,169,211

Net Cash Flows

1,591,496

Cash and investments for operations - July 1, 2020

34,507,737

Cash and investments - December 31, 2020

$36,099,233

Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments for operations
Cash and investments with fiscal agent

$19,076,557
17,022,676

Total cash and investment

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation
Net change in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaids
Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Amortization related to long-term debt

$36,099,233

$730,221

1,572,095
586,851
(652,596)
17,972
28,164
$2,282,707

$488,365

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020
Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Organization
The South Bayside Waste Management Authority (the Authority) is a joint powers
authority formed on October 13, 1999 for the purpose of joint ownership,
financing and administration of the Facilities, currently the Shoreway
Environmental Center in San Carlos; and the planning, administration
management, review, monitoring, enforcement and reporting of solid waste,
recyclable material and plant material collection activities within Authority's
service area.
Members of the Authority include the towns of Atherton and Hillsborough, and
the cities of Belmont, Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Menlo Park,
Redwood City, San Carlos, San Mateo, as well as the West Bay Sanitary
District and the County of San Mateo.
The Authority is controlled by a twelve member board consisting of one elected
representative from each member. None of the member entities exercise specific
control over the budgeting and financing of the Authority's activities beyond their
representation on the board. Accounting services are provided by the City of
Redwood City.
Effective December 31, 2020, the Town of Atherton withdrew as a Member
Agency. Withdrawal is provided for in Article 15.1 of the Authority’s JPA so long as
the withdrawing Member Agency liquidates in full its proportion of any and all
existing debts, obligations, and liabilities incurred, earned, or expected to be
earned by the date of withdrawal, including but not limited to the Revenue Bonds,
as determined by the Board and the withdrawal is approved by a 4/5 affirmative
vote of the Member Agencies.
In 2020, Atherton provided notice of its intent to withdraw from the Authority’s JPA.
On August 20, 2020, the Board held a properly noticed hearing regarding this
request and determined Atherton’s liquidation obligation to be approximately $2.2
Million. The Member Agencies thereafter approved Atherton’s withdrawal,
contingent upon liquidation of its obligation to the JPA.
As noted above, Atherton thereafter satisfied its liquidation obligation and exited
the JPA effective December 31, 2020.
Based on the franchise agreements with each member agency and Recology
effective January 1, 2011, the Authority collects service fees from Recology for
the processing and disposal of collected materials. The facility operator, South
Bay Recycling, also collects fees from public customers which are remitted to
the Authority. South Bay Recycling is paid by the Authority to operate the
facility and transport materials to disposal and processing facilities on a per
ton basis pursuant to the Operations Agreement. The compensation to both
contractors is adjusted annually based primarily on various CPI indices. The
Authority also directly pays for disposal and processing of solid waste and
organics materials to vendors such as BFI/Republic, Recology Grover, Zanker
Road.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020
Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
b. Enterprise Fund Accounting
The Authority is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its
activities for financial statement purposes. Enterprise funds are used to
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs and expenses, including depreciation, of providing goods or services
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges and the sale of commodities.
An enterprise fund is used to account for activities similar to those in the private
sector, where the proper matching of revenues and costs is important and the
full accrual basis of accounting is required. With this measurement focus, all
assets and all liabilities of the enterprise are recorded on its balance sheet, all
revenues are recognized when earned and all expenses, including depreciation,
are recognized when incurred. Enterprise fund equity includes retained earnings
and contributed capital.
c. Net Position Flow Policy
Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both
restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net position and
unrestricted – net position in the proprietary fund financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered
to be applied. It is the Authority’s policy to consider restricted – net position to
have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is used.
d. Capital Assets
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their
estimated fair market value on the date contributed. Expenditures which
materially increase the value or life of capital assets are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset. The Authority’s policy
is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding the $10,000 threshold and a
useful life of more than one year.
All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets
equitably among all users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to
depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro rata share of the cost
of capital assets.

_________________________________________________________
12 ___________________________________________________
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 01/11/2022
AGENDA ITEM: 5 EXHIBIT A - p16
FULL PACKET PAGE 36 of 88

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020
Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Depreciation is provided using the straight line method; meaning the cost of the
asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to
expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The Authority has
assigned the useful lives of capital assets by type as listed below:
Building
Improvements
Equipment

10 - 40 years
5 - 20 years
5 - 15 years

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the
capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested
proceeds over the same period.
e. Compensated Absences
Compensated absences comprise unpaid vacation which is accrued as earned.
All employees who hold full-time regular positions are entitled to 15 working
days' vacation pay upon successful completion of their first year of continuous
service. The accrual rate increases as length of service exceeds 5 years.
Maximum accumulation of vacation is two years' vacation accrual. Upon
termination or retirement, full-time employees are entitled to receive
compensation at their current base salary for all unused vacation and 50% of
their sick leave balance. The liability for compensated absences is determined
annually.
f.

Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plans
The Authority offers its employees a retirement plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 401a. The employer contribution to the 401a is
10% plus a match up to 2% of the employee contribution.
The Authority also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457b. Pursuant to the IRC
subsection (g), all amounts of compensation deferred under the deferred
compensation plan, all property, or rights are solely the property and rights of
the employee and beneficiaries of the Plan. Deferred compensation funds are
not subject to the claims of the Authority’s general creditors; consequently, the
assets and related liabilities of the plan are not included within the Authority’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020
Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
g. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The Authority has no items that
qualify for reporting in this category.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority has no items that qualify for
reporting in this category.
h. Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within
the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.
The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in
measuring fair value are observable in the market.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within level 1 – that
are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one
level of the fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on
the lowest priority level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020
Note 1:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
i.

Change in End of Accounting Period
The SBWMA Board approved a change in accounting period to align its fiscal
year with the calendar year. This fiscal period and audit for the period of July 1,
2020 to December 31, 2020 is necessary to facilitate the change in accounting
period. The reasoning for this change is due to two factors:
1. The SBWMA’s major contracts renew on a calendar year basis, including the
franchise collection contract, the facility operations contract and the disposal
and processing contracts.
2. The 11 Member Agency’s total system cost and ratepayer service fees are
calculated and adjusted on a calendar year basis.

Note 2:

Cash and Investments
The Authority pools cash from all sources except cash and investments held by fiscal
agents so that it can be invested at the maximum yield consistent with safety and
liquidity, while individual funds can make expenditures at any time.
a. Policies

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge
government securities with a market value of 110% of the Authority's cash on
deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes with a market value of 150% of the
deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held
in a separate investment pool by another institution in the Authority's name and
places the Authority ahead of general creditors of the institution. The Authority
Treasurer may waive the collateral requirement for deposits that are fully insured
up to $250,000 by the FDIC.
The Authority invests in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual
investments are evidenced by specific identifiable securities instruments, or by an
electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the
security, called the book entry system. In order to increase security, the Authority
employs the Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of certain Authority
managed investments, regardless of their form.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020
Note 2:

Cash and Investments (Continued)
The Authority's investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally
accepted accounting principles. The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its
investments to reflect their fair value at each year end, and it includes the effects
of these adjustments in income for that year.
b. Classification

Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below,
based on whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of Authority debt
instruments or agreements.
Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments for operations

$

Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Total Cash and Investments

19,076,557
17,022,676

$

36,099,233

Cash and investments for operations is used in preparing proprietary fund
statements of cash flows because these assets are highly liquid and are expended
to liquidate liabilities arising during the period.
c. Investment Authorized by the California Government Code and the

Authority’s Investment Policy
The Authority's Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the
Authority to invest in the following, provided the credit ratings of the issuers are
acceptable to the Authority; and approved percentages and maturities are not
exceeded. The table below also identifies certain provisions of the California
Government Code, or the Authority's Investment Policy when the Authority's
Investment Policy is more restrictive.

Authorized Inves tm ent Type
Local Agency Inves tm ent Fund (LAIF)

San Mateo County Inves tm ent Pool
U.S. Treas ury Bonds , Notes and Bills
U.S. Governm ent Agency and Federal
Agency Securities
Bankers Acceptances

Com m ercial Paper

Negotiable Certificates of Depos it
Tim e Certificates of Depos it - Banks
or Savings and Loans
Medium Term Corporate Notes
(A)
(B)

Maxim um
Maturity
Upon
Dem an
d
Upon
Dem an
d
5 Years
5 Years

Minim um
Credit
Quality

Maxim um
Inves tm ent
In One
Is s uer

N/A

Maxim um
in Portfolio
50% to 70% of the inves tm ent
portfolio, as approved by the
SBWMA Board but no m ore than
$75 m illion perm itted by LAIF
30 % to 50 % o f the inves tm ent
portfolio, as approved by the
SBWMA Board
100%

N/A

100%

N/A

40%

(B)

25%

(A)

N/A

N/A

180 Days

N/A
Highes t
letter and
270 Days
num ber
rating by an
NRSRO
5 Years
N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A

30%

(A)

5 Years

N/A

30%

N/A

5 Years

A

30%

(A)

5% of outs tanding paper of is s uing corporation and 10% of the portfolio in one corporation
No m ore than 30% of the agency's m oney m ay be in bankers ' acceptances of any one com m ercial bank.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020
Note 2:

Cash and Investments (Continued)
d. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The Authority must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with
trustees or fiscal agents under the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are
unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged reserves to be used if the Authority
fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California Government
Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with Authority resolutions,
bond indentures or State statutes. The table below identifies the investment types
that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The table also identifies
certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Authorized Investment Type
Direct obligations of the Department of the Treasury of the
United States
Obligations is sued or guaranteed by FMHA, FHA, General
Services Administration, GNMA, U.S. Maritime Administration,
HUD, and backed by the full faith and credit of the United
States of America
Direct obligations of FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA, REFCORP,
Farm Credit Enterprise, Federal Agriculture Mortgage
Ass ociation, Tenness ee Valley Authority
Money Market Fund
U.S. dollar denominated Certificates of Depos it, savings
accounts , deposit accounts
Inves tment agreements, including GIC's forward purchase
agreements and reserve fund put agreements
Commercial Paper
General obligations of States or municipalities
Bankers acceptances
Medium Term Notes
State of California Local Agency Inves tment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool

Minimum
Credit
Quality
None

None

None
AA
None
None
A-1
AAA
A-1+
AAA
None
None

e. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an
investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. The Authority generally manages its interest rate risk by holding
investments to maturity.
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority's investments
(including investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Authority's
investments by maturity or earliest call date:
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020
Note 2:

Cash and Investments (Continued)
12 Months
Investment Type
California Local Agency Investment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool

or less
$

8,464,326

Total
$

8,464,326

7,526,579

7,526,579

Money Market Fund

17,022,676

17,022,676

Total Investments

$ 33,013,581

33,013,581

Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent:

Total Cash in Bank and Cash on Hand
Total Cash and Investments

3,085,652
$ 36,099,233

Local Agency Investment Fund
The Authority is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of
the Treasurer of the State of California. The Authority reports its investment in
LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value of
the pool share. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations,
mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state
funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, governmentsponsored enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations.
San Mateo County Investment Fund
The Authority is a voluntary participant in the San Mateo County Investment Fund
(SMCIF) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 53600
under the oversight of the treasurer of the County of San Mateo. The Authority
reports its investment in SMCIF at the fair value amount provided by SMCIF. The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records
maintained by SMCIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
Included in SMCIF’s investment portfolio are U.S. Treasury Notes, obligations
issued by agencies of the U.S. Government, LAIF, corporate notes,
commercial paper, collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed
securities, other asset-backed securities, and floating rate securities issued by
federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. The
Authority reports its investments in SMCIF at the fair value amounts provided by
SMCIF, which is the same as the value of the pool share.
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Note 2:

Cash and Investments (Continued)
f.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Investments in
California Local Agency Investment Fund and San Mateo County Investment
Pool are not rated and therefore no rating is shown.
Presented below is the actual rating as of December 31, 2020, for each investment
type as provided by S&P ratings:
AAAm

Investment Type

Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Fund

$

17,022,676

Totals

$

17,022,676

$

17,022,676
17,022,676

Not rated:
California Local Agency Investment Fund

8,464,326

San Mateo County Investment Pool

7,526,579

Total Investments

33,013,581

Total Cash in bank and cash on hand
Total Cash and Investments

3,085,652
$

36,099,233

g. Fair Value Hierarchy

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy
is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value of the assets. Level 1
inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)
The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of
investments of the Authority as of December 31, 2020:
Investment Type

Exempt

Total

Investments by Fair Value:
California Local Agency Investment Fund
San Mateo County Investment Pool
Total Investments at Fair Value

$

8,464,326
7,526,579

$ 15,990,905

$

8,464,326
7,526,579
15,990,905

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:
Money Market Fund
Total Investments
Cash in bank s
Total Cash and Investments

17,022,676
33,013,581
3,085,652
$ 36,099,233

Both the California Local Agency Investment Fund and the San Mateo County
Investment Pool are external investment pools and exempted in the fair value
hierarchy, under GASB 72.
h. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority's Investment Policy contains certain limitations on the amount that
can be invested in any one issuer. In certain categories, these limitations surpass
those required by California Government Code Sections 53600 et seq.
Investments in any one issuer, other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual
funds, and external investment pools that represent 5% or more of total Entitywide investments. There were no such investments at December 31, 2020.
Note 3:

Capital Assets and Facilities Operations
Pursuant to a sales agreement with Republic Services, Inc., the Authority purchased
land, and buildings and personal property amounting to $14 million and $5.228
million, respectively. These facilities comprise the Shoreway Environmental Center
in San Carlos. The Authority signed an agreement to lease back the facilities to
Republic Services, Inc. to operate them. This agreement expired on December 31,
2006 and the Authority had extended the agreement until December 31, 2010. The
Authority signed a new agreement effective January 1, 2011 with South Bay
Recycling to operate the facility. For the 6-months period ended December 31, 2020,
the Authority paid $10,218,054 to South Bay Recycling to operate the Facility.
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Note 3:

Capital Assets and Facilities Operations (Continued)
Changes in capital assets were as follows for the 6-months period ended December 31,
2020:
Balance at
June 30, 2020

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

$

14,000,000
8,739,355

Additions
$

666,555

Deletions
$

-

Total non-depreciable assets

22,739,355

666,555

-

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment

36,441,591
24,333,572

118,676

Total capital assets being depreciated

60,775,163

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Equipment

(15,495,726)
(17,499,939)

Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets being depreciated
Capital assets, net

Note 4:

$

Balance at
December 31, 2020

Transfers
$

(5,692,580)

$

14,000,000
3,713,330

(5,692,580)

17,713,330

24,167
-

5,506,828
185,752

41,972,586
24,638,000

118,676

24,167

5,692,580

66,610,586

(610,699)
(961,396)

(24,167)

(32,995,665)

(1,572,095)

(24,167)

27,779,498

(1,453,419)

50,518,853

$ (786,864)

$

-

-

(16,106,425)
(18,485,502)

-

(34,591,927)

5,692,580
$

-

32,018,659
$

49,731,989

Revenue Bonds
The Authority's debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in
detail thereafter.
Balance
June 30, 2020

2019A Solid Waste
Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds
2019A Bond premiums
2019B Solid Waste
Enterprise Revenue Bonds
2019B Bond premiums

$

31,860,000
7,582,171

$

16,915,000
3,161,862
$

59,519,033

Balance
December 31, 2020

Retirements

(172,322)

$

(850,000)
(71,861)
$

(1,094,183)

31,860,000
7,409,849

Due Within
One Year

$

16,065,000
3,090,001
$

58,424,850

344,644
1,245,000
143,721

$

1,733,365

a. Solid Waste Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds 2019A and Solid Waste

Enterprise Revenue Bonds 2019B
On July 9, 2019 SWBMA issued Solid Waste Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2019A, Non-Alternative Minimum Tax Green Bonds in the amount of $31.86
million and Solid Waste Enterprise Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B, Alternative
Minimum Tax Green Bonds in the amount of $16.915 million. The Series 2019A
Bonds were issued to refund, in full, the Series 2009A bonds, pay a portion of the
cost of a debt reserve insurance policy, and pay costs of issuance of the Series
2019A Bonds, including a portion of the cost of a municipal bond insurance policy.
The Series 2019B Bonds were issued to pay certain costs incurred by SBWMA in
connection with the construction of various improvements and acquisition of certain
associated equipment to SBWMA’s solid waste materials recovery facility and
transfer station located in the City of San Carols, CA, pay a portion of the cost of the
Reserve Policy, and pay costs of issuance of the California series 2019B Bonds,
including a portion of the cost of a municipal bond insurance policy.
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Note 4:

Revenue Bonds (Continued)
The refunding resulted in an overall debt service savings of $3,454,784 over the life
of the bond. The net present value of the debt service savings is called an
economic gain and amounted to $9,873,987.
The series 2019 bonds are solely payable from and secured by the net revenues
and debt service reserve fund held by the Authority's trustee, as defined under the
bond indenture. Net Revenues means, for any period, all of the revenues during
such period less all of the maintenance and operation costs during such period.
Revenues mean all gross income and revenue received or receivable by the
Authority.
The bond covenants contain events of default that require the revenue of the
Authority to be applied by the Trustee as specified in the terms of the agreement if
any of the following conditions occur: default on debt service payments; the failure
of the Authority to observe or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement
terms of the debt; bankruptcy filing by the Authority; or if any court or competent
jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Authority. There were no such
events occurred during the period ending December 31, 2020.
b. Revenue Pledge

The bonds are secured by a pledge of the Authority’s Net Revenue as defined
under the bond indenture. For the 2019A bonds, the pledge of future net revenue
ends upon repayment of the 2019A bonds in the amount of $82,167,375 in
remaining debt service on the bonds which is scheduled to occur in the year 2043.
According to the Rate Covenant in the 2019A Bond Indenture, the Authority will
maintain a Net Revenue to Debt Service coverage ratio of 1.40. As of the period
ended December 31, 2020, the Net Revenues to Debt Service Coverage ratio was
2.46.
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Revenue Bonds (Continued)
c. Debt Service Requirements

Annual debt service requirements on the bonds are shown below with specified
repayment terms:
For the Year
Ending December 31,
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2026 - 2030
2031 - 2035
2036 - 2040
2041 - 2042

Principal
$

$

Total

2,396,250
2,334,000
2,268,750
2,200,250
2,128,250
9,427,000
7,001,250
3,905,750
511,500

$

3,641,250
3,639,000
3,638,750
3,640,250
3,643,250
18,207,000
18,206,250
18,205,750
7,276,500

Total

47,925,000

32,173,000

80,098,000

Unamortized Bond Premium

10,499,850

-

-

$

Note 5:

1,245,000
1,305,000
1,370,000
1,440,000
1,515,000
8,780,000
11,205,000
14,300,000
6,765,000

Interest

58,424,850

$

32,173,000

$

80,098,000

Insurance
The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies to protect itself from claims
arising from the following types of losses:
Type of Coverage
General Aggregate Limit

Coverage Limits
$

2,000,000

General Liability deductible

2,500 SIR

Environmental Impact Liability aggregate

2,000,000

Environmental Liability deductible

25,000 SIR

Hired & Non-Owned Auto Limit

1,000,000

Employee Benefits Liability

1,000,000

Excess Liability

10,000,000

Property & Equipment Loss

60,000,000

Property & Equipment deductible
Directors & Officers, Employment Practices, and Fiduciary Liabilities
Aggregate for all loss combined, including defense costs

1,500,000
7,000,000

Directors & Officers Liability Retention

50,000

Employment Practices Liability Retention

75,000

Fiduciary Liability Retention

2,500
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2020
Note 6:

Pollution Remediation
In 2000 the South Bay Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) purchased the
property located at 225/333 Shoreway Road in San Carlos. The property had preexisting ground water contamination issues and the former property owner Allied
Waste (now Republic Services) was identified as the responsible party. The ground
water contamination is the result of hydrocarbon and petroleum products. Both Allied
Waste and the SBWMA have managed a remediation effort under supervision from
the County of San Mateo Department of Environmental Health.
The San Mateo County Health System (SMCHS) and the California Regional Water
Quality Control Board (RWQCB) have reviewed and approved the SBWMA’s “Closure
Report” submitted on January 29, 2013 to close the Shoreway Environmental Center
(“Shoreway”) groundwater remediation project and issued a NOTICE OF CASE
CLOSURE on April 29, 2014. This case closure letter is the final step in the Shoreway
remediation closure and “no further remediation action” is required at the Shoreway
facility. While no further remediation effort was deemed necessary, due to concerns
about potential residual contamination, the property has a deed restriction requiring it
to remain industrially zoned.
In March of 2010, the SBWMA received a lump sum settlement payment of
$1,500,000 from Republic Services (formerly Allied Waste and BFI). This money was
deposited into a SBWMA account dedicated to the ongoing clean-up efforts at
Shoreway (the remediation cost estimate was negotiated with Allied per methods
approved by County regulators and based on input from environmental engineers). At
the close of remediation efforts on April 29, 2014 the Shoreway Remediation Fund had
an unspent balance of $1,239,826. The unspent balance as of December 31, 2020 is
$1,233,640 and is reported as accrued liabilities.

Note 7:

Net Position
The Authority has designated $16,347,969 unrestricted net position for several
reserves which include: $4,617,529 for rate stabilization, $4,731,514 for emergency
reserve, $766,789 for equipment replacement, and $6,232,137 for capital items.
These designations may be modified, amended or removed by Authority Board action.

Note 8:

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Litigation
SBWMA is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion
of legal counsel there is no pending litigation, which is likely to have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of SBWMA.
Construction Commitments
There are no significant construction commitments as of December 31, 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors
South Bayside Waste Management Authority
San Carlos, California
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial
statements of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (Authority), as of and for the
period July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated August 27,
2021.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated August 27, 2021,
which is an integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Pleasant Hill, California
November 19, 2021

_________________________________________________________
26 ___________________________________________________
SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 01/11/2022
AGENDA ITEM: 5 EXHIBIT A - p30
FULL PACKET PAGE 50 of 88

6

Agenda Item 6
Draft for Finance Committee Review: Resolution Approving the SBWMA
Investment Policy for 2022

Following is the DRAFT Staff Report to be presented at the January 27, 2022 SBWMA
Board of Directors Meeting for Finance Committee Review and Feedback
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6
STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager
January 27, 2022 Board of Director’s Meeting
Draft for Finance Committee Review: Resolution Approving the SBWMA Investment Policy
for 2022

Recommendation
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2022-XX attached hereto
authorizing the adoption of the Investment Policy for 2022. See Exhibit A to the Resolution for the proposed 2022
Investment Policy.
Summary
The Investment Policy states that the policy shall be reviewed and adopted by resolution of the Board on an
annual basis, typically at the January BOD Meeting. It was last approved by the Board on January 28, 2021. The
2022 policy has been reviewed by the Board Finance Sub-Committee on January 11th, 2022 which recommends
approval. Redwood City Staff and Redwood City’s investment advisory firm, PFM Consulting, also reviewed the
investment policy and recommends one edit to the policy for compliance with California Code. The
recommendation is to remove one sentence in the Policy’s commercial paper paragraph so that the language is in
line with Code language. The recommended edit is red-lined in Exhibit A, Section 5. Also see Attachment A –
Communication from PFM Consulting.
Staff is also recommending edits to clean up the Policy’s language on investment oversight, which are presented
in red-line on Exhibit A.
In addition, the Finance Committee recommended changing the allowable percentage investments in LAIF Fund
and County Pool, which is further described below.
Background
On August 24, 2000, the Board approved the first Investment Policy based on the City of San Carlos’ Investment
Policy. The Board has since approved revisions on an annual basis. The attached 2022 Investment Policy is fully
compliant with California Code. The primary objective of the Investment Policy is safety of principal, while
meeting the cash flow needs of the JPA, through prudent investment of surplus cash.
In January 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the mix of investments between the County Pool and the state
LAIF Fund. The Audit Sub-Committee agreed to increase the County Fund to 30% to 50% while keeping the state
LAIF Fund at 50% to 70%. This change was approved by the Board at the January 22, 2015 Board meeting.
At Board request, environmentally responsible investment language was added to the adopted 2020 investment
policy and this language continues forth in the recommended 2022 policy.
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At it’s June 2021 meeting, the Finance Committee recommended increasing the allowable percentage
investments in the County Pool and LAIF Fund. The Committee concluded that the government investment pools
are so conservative by law that increasing the allowable percentage is low risk. A greater percentage of
investment in each of the County Pool and LAIF would allow management to maximize returns. The Committee
recommended an 80% limit for both County Pool and LAIF subject to Finance Committee review.
Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact associated with approving the attached Investment Policy.
Attachments:
Resolution 2021-XX
Exhibit A – Investment Policy

Attachment A – Communication from PFM Consulting
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RESOLUTION NO. 2022-XX
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
APPROVING THE SBWMA INVESTMENT POLICY FOR 2022
WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA), the City of Redwood City and
PFM Consulting have reviewed the SBWMA’s current Investment Policy; and
WHEREAS, the Board’s Finance Sub-Committee has also reviewed the Policy on January 11th, 2022 and
supports the recommendation; and
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby
approves the 2022 SBWMA Investment Policy document as shown in Exhibit A.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of
San Mateo, State of California on the 27th day of January, 2022, by the following vote:
Agency
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough
Menlo Park

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

West Bay Sanitary Dist

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-XX was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 27, 2022.

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board
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South Bayside Waste Management Authority
Investment Policy
Page 1

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
INVESTMENT POLICY
January 20221
POLICY
The investment of the funds of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) is
directed to the goals of safety, liquidity and yield. This Investment Policy incorporates the policies
defined by the certified investment policy standards recommended by the California Debt and
Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC). The authority governing investments for municipal
governments is set forth in the California Government Code, Sections 53600 through 53686.

AF
T

The primary objective of the investment policy of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority
is SAFETY OF PRINCIPAL. Investments shall be placed in those securities as outlined by type and
maturity sector in this document. Effective cash flow management and resulting cash investment
practices are recognized as essential to good fiscal management and control. The SBWMA's
portfolio shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent
with state and local law. Portfolio management requires continual analysis and as a result the
balance between the various investments and maturities may change in order to give the SBWMA
the optimum combination of necessary liquidity and optimal yield based on cash flow projections.
SCOPE

D

PRUDENCE

R

The investment policy applies to all financial assets of the South Bayside Waste Management
Authority as accounted for in the Annual Financial Statements. Policy statements outlined in this
document focus on the SBWMA's pooled funds and debt-related funds held by the trustee/ fiscal
agent.

The standard to be used by investment officials shall be that of a "prudent investor" and shall be
applied in the context of managing all aspects of the overall portfolio. When investing, reinvesting,
purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care,
skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to,
the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person
acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the
agency. Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments as part of an
overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law.
It is the SBWMA's full intent, at the time of purchase, to hold all investments until maturity to ensure
the return of all invested principal dollars.
However, it is realized that market prices of securities will vary depending on economic and interest
rate conditions at any point in time. It is further recognized that in a well-diversified investment
portfolio, occasional measured losses are inevitable due to economic, bond market or individual
security credit analysis. These occasional losses must be considered within the context of the overall
investment program objectives and the resultant long-term rate of return.
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South Bayside Waste Management Authority
Investment Policy
Page 2

The Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director, Financial Services Manager, and
Principal Analyst of the City of Redwood City (RWC) and other individuals assigned, as approved
by the SBWMA Executive Director and SBWMA Senior Finance Manager to manage the SBWMA
investment portfolio, acting within the intent and scope of the investment policy and other written
procedures and exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility and liability for
an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations
are reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.
OBJECTIVES
Safety of Principal
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority.
Each investment transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from
securities default, broker-dealer default or erosion of market value. The SBWMA shall seek to
preserve principal by mitigating the two types of risk: credit risk and market risk.

AF
T

Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a security, shall be mitigated by
investing in investment grade securities and by diversifying the investment portfolio so that the
failure of any one issuer does not unduly harm the SBWMA's capital base and cash flow.

R

Market risk, defined as market value fluctuations due to overall changes in the general level of
interest rates, shall be mitigated by limiting the average maturity of the SBWMA's investment
portfolio to two years, the maximum maturity of any one security to five years, structuring the portfolio
based on historic and current cash flow analysis eliminating the need to sell securities prior to
maturity and avoiding the purchase of long term securities for the sole purpose of short term
speculation.

D

Liquidity
Historical cash flow trends are compared to current cash flow requirements on an ongoing basis in
an effort to ensure that the SBWMA's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the
SBWMA to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements.
MATURITY MATRIX
Maturities of investments will be selected based on liquidity requirements to minimize interest rate
risk and maximize earnings. Current and expected yield curve analysis will be monitored and the
portfolio will be invested accordingly. The weighted average maturity of the pooled portfolio should
not exceed two years and the following percentages of the portfolio should be invested in the
following maturity sectors:
Maturity Range
Suggested Percentage
1 day to 7 days
7 days to 180
180 days to 360 days
1 year to 2 years
2 years to 3 years
3 years to 4 years
4 years to 5 years
Over 5 years

10 to 50%
10 to 30%
10 to 30%
10 to 20%
0 to 20%
0 to 20%
0 to 20%
Board Authorization Required *
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* One exception does exist regarding the investment of bond reserve funds. If, in the opinion of the
Executive Director or the SBWMA Board of Directors, matching the segregated investment portfolio
of the bond reserve fund with the maturity schedule of an individual bond issue is prudent given
current economic analysis, the investment policy authorizes extending beyond the five year maturity
limitation as outlined in this document.
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Investment performance is monitored and evaluated by the Investment Advisory Oversight
Committee; whose membership is outlined in the following section. Investment performance
statistics and activity reports are generated on a quarterly basis for presentation to the Investment
OversightAdvisory Committee and to the SBWMA Board of Directors. Annually, a statement of
investment policy, and any proposed changes to the policy, will be rendered to the Investment
OversightAdvisory Committee and to the SBWMA Board of Directors for Board consideration at a
public meeting.

AF
T

The SBWMA’s investment portfolio is designed to at least attain a market average rate of return
through economic cycles. The market average rate of return is defined as average return on the
Local Agency Investment Fund (assuming the State does not adversely affect LAIF’s returns due to
budget constraints).
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

R

The Joint Powers Authority Agreement of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority and the
authority granted by SBWMA Board assign the responsibility of investing unexpended cash to the
City’s Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director or Principal Analyst. Daily
management responsibility of the investment program may be delegated to the City’s Financial
Services Manager, who shall establish procedures for the operation consistent with this investment
policy.

D

INVESTMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

The Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director, Financial Services Manager, and
Principal Analyst (City Treasurer) of the City of Redwood City will provide general oversight and
direction concerning the policy related to management of SBWMA's investments, . Iin conjunction
with the City’s investment advisory firm, Tthe Financial Services Manager shall review and approve
quarterly investment reports prepared by the Finance Division and meet as necessary to discuss
changes to the report or the investment strategy. The SBWMA Board will be provided with quarterly
reports for their review within thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter covered by the report
as per Section 53646 (b)(1) of the California Government Code.
ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business
activity that conflicts with proper execution of the investment program, or impairs their ability to make
impartial investment decisions. Additionally the City’s Assistant City Manager and Administrative
Services Director and the Financial Services Manager are required to annually file applicable
financial disclosures as required by the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC).
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SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES
To protect against fraud or embezzlement or losses caused by collapse of an individual securities
dealer, all securities owned by the SBWMA shall be held in safekeeping by a third party bank trust
department, acting as agent for the SBWMA under the terms of a custody agreement. All trades
executed by a dealer will settle delivery versus payment (DVP) through the SBWMA's safekeeping
agent.
Securities held custody for the SBWMA shall be monitored by the City’s Financial Services Manager
to verify investment holdings.
All exceptions to this safekeeping policy must be approved by the City’s Financial Services Manager
in written form and included in the quarterly reporting to the SBWMA Board of Directors.

AF
T

INTERNAL CONTROL
Separation of functions between the City’s Financial Services Manager and the Principal Analyst,
Senior Accountant, Accountant, Account Technician, and/or Account Clerk is designed to provide
an ongoing internal review to prevent the potential for converting assets or concealing transactions.

R

Investment decisions are made by the City’s Financial Services Manager, executed by the Principal
Analyst, Senior Accountant, Accountant, Account Technician, and/or Account Clerk. All wire
transfers initiated by the Accountant or Account Technician must be reconfirmed by the appropriate
financial institution to the Financial Services Manager. Proper documentation obtained from
confirmation and cash disbursement wire transfers is required for each investment transaction.
Timely bank reconciliation is conducted to ensure proper handling of all transactions.

D

The investment portfolio and all related transactions are reviewed and balanced to appropriate
general ledger accounts by the Account Technician on a monthly basis. An independent analysis
by an external auditor shall be conducted annually to review and perform procedure testing on the
Agency’s cash and investments that have a material impact on the financial statements. The
Financial Services Manager shall review and assure compliance with investment process and
procedures.
REPORTING
The City’s Financial Services Manager shall review and render quarterly reports to the Board of
Directors which shall include the face amount of the cash investment, the classification of the
investment, the name of the institution or entity, the rate of interest, the maturity date, the current
market value and accrued interest due for all securities. The quarterly reports will be submitted to
the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter covered by the report
as per Section 53646 (b)(1) of the California Government Code. If there are no Board of Director
meetings within the 30-day period, the quarterly report shall be presented to the Board of Directors
at the soonest possible meeting thereafter.
QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS
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The SBWMA shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, and with broker/dealers.
The broker/dealers should be primary or regional dealers. The City currently does not maintain a list
of broker/dealers approved to do business with the City. When necessary, the City shall go through
the Request for Proposal processes to select the broker/dealers. Investment staff shall investigate
dealers wishing to do business with the SBWMA to determine if they are adequately capitalized,
have pending legal action against the firm or the individual broker and make markets in the securities
appropriate to the SBWMA's needs. The SBWMA’s investment policy shall be made available on
the Authority’s website for broker/dealers’ review.
COLLATERAL REQUIREMENTS
Collateral is required for investments in certificates of deposit. In order to reduce market risk, the
collateral level will be at least 110% of market value of principal and accrued interest.
ENVIRONMENTALLY RESPONSIBLE INVESTING

AF
T

When possible, the Authority will invest in companies that demonstrate verifiable environmental
stewardship policies that align with the SBWMA’s Triple Zero goals. These goals are identified in
the Authority’s 2020 Long Range Plan-Guiding Principles and Objectives. They are:
1. Eliminate the disposal of recyclable materials at landfills
2. Eliminate the disposal of organic materials at landfills

R

3. Minimize Agency greenhouse gas emissions (through measures such as using lowemission vehicle fuels and reducing the need for materials collection and transfer of
materials).

D

These goals will allow the Authority’s environmental responsible asset investment to strategically
align with its mission, and with its Member Agencies’ own environmental visions.
AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

Investment of SBWMA funds is governed by the California Government Code Sections 53600 et
seq. Within the context of the limitations, the following investments are authorized, as further limited
herein:
1. United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, and Notes or those for which the full faith and credit of
the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There is no percentage
limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this category, although a five-year maturity
limitation is applicable.
2. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of California managed investment
pool, and San Mateo County Investment pool, may be used up to the maximum permitted
by California State Law. A review of the pool/fund is required when they are part of the list
of authorized investments, with the knowledge that the pool/fund may include some
investments allowed by statute but not explicitly identified in this investment policy.
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3. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations,
participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to
principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored
enterprises. There is no percentage limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this
category, although a five-year maturity limitation is applicable.
4. Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by commercial banks, otherwise
known as banker's acceptances. Banker's acceptances purchased may not exceed 180 days
to maturity or 40% of the cost value of the portfolio. Also, no more than 30% of the agency’s
money may be in bankers’ acceptances of any one commercial bank.
Commercial paper ranked the highest letter and number rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization (NRSRO), such as Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch
Ratings, Inc. or Moody’s Investors Services, and issued by domestic corporations having
assets in excess of $500,000,000 and having a rating in the rating category of “A” or the
equivalent or better rating on its' long term debentures as provided by NRSRO. Purchases
of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 270 days to maturity. nor represent more than
10% of the outstanding paper of the issuing corporation. Purchases of commercial paper
may not exceed 25% of the cost value of the portfolio. No more than 5% of the market value
of the portfolio may be invested in any one issuer.

6.

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by nationally or state chartered banks (FDIC
insured institutions), a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section
5102 of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federally licensed or
state-licensed branch of a foreign bank. Purchases of negotiable certificates of deposit may
not exceed 30% of total portfolio. A maturity limitation of five years is applicable. No more
than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may be invested in any one issuer.

7.

Time deposits, non-negotiable and collateralized in accordance with the California
Government Code, may be purchased through banks or savings and loan associations.
Since time deposits are not liquid, no more than 30% of the investment portfolio may be
invested in this investment type. A maturity limitation of five years is applicable.

8.

Medium Term Corporate Notes, with a maximum maturity of five years may be purchased.
Securities eligible for investment shall be rated in a rating category of “A” or the equivalent
or better by an NRSRO. Purchase of medium term notes may not exceed 30% of the market
value of the portfolio and no more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may be
invested in notes issued by one corporation..

9.

Ineligible investments are those that are not described herein, including but not limited to,
common stocks and long term (over five years in maturity) notes and bonds are prohibited
from use in this portfolio. It is noted that special circumstances arise that necessitate the
purchase of securities beyond the five-year limitation. On such occasions, requests must be
approved by Board of Directors prior to purchase.

10.

Various daily money market funds administered for or by trustees, paying agents and
custodian banks contracted by the SBWMA may be purchased as allowed under State of

D

R

AF
T

5.
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California Government Code. Only funds holding U.S. Treasury or Government agency
obligations can be utilized.
The following summary of maximum percentage limits, by instrument, is established for the
SBWMA's total pooled funds portfolio:

Authorized
Investment Type

Local Agency
Investment Fund
(LAIF)

Government
Code

San Mateo County
Investment Pool

Commercial Paper

Negotiable
Certificates of
Deposit
Time Certificates of
Deposit – Banks or
Savings and Loans
Medium Term
Corporate Notes

N/A

Upon
Demand

N/A

53601(b)

5 Years

N/A

100%

N/A

5 Years

N/A

100%

N/A

180 Days

N/A

40%

30%

53601(h)

270 Days

Highest
letter and
number
rating by
an
NRSRO

25%

5%

53601(i)

5 Years

N/A

30%

5%

53601.8

5 Years

N/A

30%

N/A

5 Years

Rating
category
“A” by
NRSRO

30%

5%

53601(f)

D

Bankers’
Acceptances

N/A

2050% to 7080%
of the investment
portfolio, as
approved by the
SBWMA Board
but no more than
$75 million
permitted by LAIF
2030% to 5080%
of the investment
portfolio, as
approved by the
SBWMA Board

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

53684

R

Treasury Obligations
(bills, notes & bonds)
US Government
Agency and Federal
Agency Securities

Upon
Demand

Maximum in
Portfolio

AF
T

16429.1

Maximum
Maturity

Minimum
Credit
Quality

53601(g)

53601(k)

N/A
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DERIVATIVE INVESTMENTS
Derivatives are investments whose value is "derived" from a benchmark or index. That benchmark
can be almost any financial measure from interest rates to commodity and stock prices. The use of
derivatives is prohibited under this policy.
LEGISLATIVE CHANGES
Any State of California legislative action that further restricts allowable maturities, investment type,
or percentage allocations will be incorporated into the South Bayside Waste Management
Authority's Investment Policy and supersede any and all previous applicable language.
INTEREST EARNINGS

AF
T

All moneys earned and collected from investments authorized in this policy shall be allocated
quarterly to various fund accounts based on the cash balance in each fund at quarter end as a
percentage of the entire pooled portfolio.
LIMITING MARKET VALUE EROSION

The longer the maturity of securities, the greater their market price volatility. Therefore, it is the
general policy of the SBWMA to limit the potential effects from erosion in market values by adhering
to the following guidelines:

R

All immediate and anticipated liquidity requirements will be addressed prior to purchasing all
investments.

D

Maturity dates for long-term investments will coincide with significant cash flow requirements where
possible, to assist with short term cash requirements at maturity.
All long-term securities will be purchased with the intent to hold all investments to maturity under
then prevailing economic conditions. However, economic or market conditions may change, making
it in the SBWMA's best interest to sell or trade a security prior to maturity.
PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY
The investment program shall seek to augment returns consistent with the intent of this policy,
identified risk limitations and prudent investment principals. These objectives will be achieved by
use of the following strategies:
Active Portfolio Management. Through active fund and cash flow management, taking advantage
of current economic and interest rate trends, the portfolio yield may be enhanced with limited and
measurable increases in risk by extending the weighted maturity of the total portfolio.
Portfolio Maturity Management. When structuring the maturity composition of the portfolio, the
SBWMA shall evaluate current and expected interest rate yields and necessary cash flow
requirements. It is recognized that in normal market conditions longer maturities produce higher
yields. However, the securities with longer maturities also experience greater price fluctuations when
the level of interest rates change.
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Security Swaps. The SBWMA may take advantage of security swap opportunities to improve the
overall portfolio yield. A swap, which improves the portfolio yield, may be selected even if the
transactions result in an accounting loss. Documentation for swaps will be included in the SBWMA
permanent investment file documents.
Competitive Bidding. It is the policy of the SBWMA to require competitive bidding for investment
transactions that are not classified as "new issue" securities. For the purchase of non-"new issue"
securities and the sale of all securities at least three bidders must be contacted. Competitive bidding
for security swaps is also suggested, however, it is understood that certain time constraints and
broker portfolio limitations exist which would not accommodate the competitive bidding process. If
a time or portfolio constraining condition exists, the pricing of the swap should be verified to current
market conditions and documented for auditing purposes.
POLICY REVIEW

Glossary of Terms

AF
T

The South Bayside Waste Management Authority's investment policy shall be adopted by resolution
of the Board on an annual basis. This investment policy shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure
its consistency with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity and yield, and its
relevance to current law and financial and economic trends. Any amendments to the policy shall be
forwarded to Board for approval.

Accrued Interest- Interest earned but not yet received.

R

Active Deposits- Funds which are immediately required for disbursement.

D

Amortization- An accounting practice of gradually decreasing (increasing) an asset's book value by
spreading its depreciation (accretion) over a period of time.
Annual Financial Report - The official annual financial report for the SBWMA. It includes five
combined statements and basic financial statements for each individual fund and account group
prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).
Asked Price- The price a broker dealer offers to sell securities.
Basis Point- One basis point is one hundredth of one percent (.01).
Bid Price- The price a broker dealer offers to purchase securities.
Bond- A financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder a specified stream
of future cash flows, including periodic interest payments and a principal repayment.
Bond Swap – Selling one bond issue and buying another at the same time in order to create an
advantage for the investor. Some benefits of swapping may include tax-deductible losses,
increased yields, and an improved quality portfolio.
Book Entry Securities – Securities, such stocks held in “street name,” that are recorded in a
customer’s account, but are not accompanied by a certificate. The trend is toward a certificate-free
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society in order to cut down on paperwork and to diminish investors’ concerns about the certificates
themselves. All the large New York City banks, including those that handle the bulk of the
transactions of the major government securities dealers, now clear most of their transactions with
each other and with the Federal Reserve through the use of automated telecommunications and the
“book-entry” custody system maintained by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. These banks
have deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank a major portion of their government and agency
securities holdings, including securities held for the accounts of their customers or in a fiduciary
capacity. Virtually all transfers for the account of the banks, as well as for the government securities
dealers who are their clients, are now effected solely by bookkeeping entries. The system reduces
the costs and risks of physical handling and speeds the completion of transactions.

AF
T

Bearer and Registered Bonds - In the past, bearer and registered bonds were issued in paper form.
Those still outstanding may be exchanged at any Federal Reserve Bank or branch for an equal
amount of any authorized denomination of the same issue. Outstanding bearer bonds are
interchangeable with registered bonds and bonds in “book-entry” form. That is, the latter exist as
computer entries only and no paper securities are issued. New bearer and registered bonds are no
longer being issued. Since August 1986, the Treasury’s new issues of marketable notes and bonds
are available in book-entry form only. All Treasury bills and more than 90% of all other marketable
securities are now in book-entry form. Book-entry obligations are transferable only pursuant to
regulations prescribed by the Secretary of the Treasury.
Book Value- The value at which a debt security is shown on the holder's balance sheet. Book value
is acquisition cost less amortization of premium or accretion of discount.

R

Broker – In securities, the intermediary between a buyer and a seller of securities. The broker, who
usually charges a commission, must be registered with the exchange in which he or she is trading,
accounting for the name registered representative.

D

Certificate of Deposit- A deposit insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC at a set rate for a specified
period of time.
Collateral- Securities, evidence of deposit or pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to
securities pledged by a bank to secure deposit of public moneys.
Constant Maturity Treasury (CMT) - An average yield of a specific Treasury maturity sector for a
specific time frame. This is a market index for reference of past direction of interest rates for the
given Treasury maturity range.
Coupon- The annual rate of interest that a bond's issuer promises to pay the bondholder on the
bond's face value.
Credit Analysis- A critical review and appraisal of the economic and financial conditions or of the
ability to meet debt obligations.
Current Yield- The interest paid on an investment expressed as a percentage of the current price of
the security.
Custody- A banking service that provides safekeeping for the individual securities in a customer's
investment portfolio under a written agreement which also calls for the bank to collect and pay out
income, to buy, sell, receive and deliver securities when ordered to do so by the principal.
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Delivery vs. Payment (DVP) - Delivery of securities with a simultaneous exchange of money for the
securities.
Discount- The difference between the cost of a security and its value at maturity when quoted at
lower than face value.
Diversification- Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent returns
and risk profiles.
Duration- The weighted average maturity of a bond's cash flow stream, where the present value of
the cash flows serve as the weights; the future point in time at which on average, an investor has
received exactly half of the original investment, in present value terms; a bond's zero-coupon
equivalent; the fulcrum of a bond's present value cash flow time line.

AF
T

Fannie Mae- Trade name for the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), a U.S. sponsored
corporation.
Federal Reserve System- The central bank of the U.S. that consists of a seven member Board of
Governors, 12 regional banks and approximately 3,000 commercial banks that are members.
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) - Insurance provided to customers of a subscribing
bank that guarantees deposits to a set limit (currently $250,000) per account.

R

Fed Wire- A wire transmission service established by the Federal Reserve Bank to facilitate the
transfer of funds through debits and credits of funds between participants within the Fed system.
Freddie Mac- Trade name for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), a U.S.
sponsored corporation.

D

Ginnie Mae- Trade name for the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), a direct
obligation bearing the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government.
Inactive Deposits- Funds not immediately needed for disbursement.
Interest Rate- The annual yield earned on an investment, expressed as a percentage.
Investment Agreements- An agreement with a financial institution to borrow public funds subject to
certain negotiated terms and conditions concerning collateral, liquidity and interest rates.
Liquidity- Refers to the ability to rapidly convert an investment into cash.
Market Value- The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or sold.
Maturity- The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and
payable.
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSRO): A U.S. Securities & Exchange
Commission registered agency that assesses the creditworthiness of an entity or specific security.
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NRSRO typically refers to Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch Ratings, Inc. or Moody’s
Investors Services.
New Issue- Term used when a security is originally "brought" to market.
Perfected Delivery- Refers to an investment where the actual security or collateral is held by an
independent third party representing the purchasing entity.
Portfolio- Collection of securities held by an investor.
Primary Dealer- A group of government securities dealers that submit daily reports of market activity
and security positions held to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and are subject to its informal
oversight.
Purchase Date- The date in which a security is purchased for settlement on that or a later date.

AF
T

Rate of Return- The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market
price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income return.
Repurchase Agreement (REPO) - A transaction where the seller (bank) agrees to buy back from
the buyer (SBWMA) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period of time.
Reverse Repurchase Agreement (REVERSE REPO) - A transaction where the seller (SBWMA)
agrees to buy back from the buyer (bank) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period
of time.

R

Risk- Degree of uncertainty of return on an asset.
Safekeeping- see custody.

D

Sallie Mae- Trade name for the Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA), a U.S. sponsored
corporation.
Secondary Market- A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues following the
initial distribution.
Settlement Date- The date on which a trade is cleared by delivery of securities against funds.
Time Deposit – A deposit in an interest-paying account that requires the money to remain on account
for a specific length of time. While withdrawals can generally be made from a passbook account at
any time, other time deposits, such as certificates of deposit, are penalized for early withdrawal.
Treasury Obligations- Debt obligations of the U.S. Government that are sold by the Treasury
Department in the forms of bills, notes, and bonds. Bills are short-term obligations that mature in
one year or less. Notes are obligations that mature between one year and ten years. Bonds are
long-term obligations that generally mature in ten years or more.
U.S. Government Agencies- Instruments issued by various US Government Agencies most of which
are secured only by the credit worthiness of the particular agency.
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Yield- The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage. It is obtained
by dividing the current dollar income by the current market price of the security.
Yield to Maturity- The rate of income return on an investment, minus any premium or plus any
discount, with the adjustment spread over the period from the date of purchase to the date of
maturity of the bond, expressed as a percentage.

D

R

AF
T

Yield Curve- The yield on bonds, notes or bills of the same type and credit risk at a specific date for
maturities up to thirty years.
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John Mangini
Subject:
Attachments:

FW: SBWMA investment policy review
_Investment Policy_Approved 012821_REVIEW Dec 2021_PFMAM edits.docx

From: Allison Kaune <KAUNEA@pfmam.com>
Sent: Monday, December 6, 2021 9:25 AM
To: FIN‐Derek Rampone <drampone@redwoodcity.org>
Cc: Monique Spyke <SPYKEM@pfmam.com>
Subject: SBWMA investment policy review
Good morning Derek, I hope you had a nice weekend. We have completed our review of SBWMA’s Investment
Policy. The Policy is in compliance with California Government Code (Code) and in line with best practices.
This year we are recommending just one change to the Policy’s commercial paper language, in response to a
Code change resulting from the passage of Senate Bill 998.
In our review last year, we provided SBWMA information on SB 998, the subsequent Code changes, and the
impact of those changes on the Policy. Last year we noted that the Policy required no changes as a result of
the Code changes. However, there is one sentence in the Policy’s commercial paper paragraph that we
recommend deleting so that the language is in line with Code language.
In addition to this change, we also updated the maximum allowed in LAIF and the San Mateo County
Investment Pool, as requested by the Finance Committee at the June meeting.
The attached Policy shows our recommended edits.
Please let us know if you have any questions.
Thank you,
Allison

Allison Kaune
Pronouns: she, her, hers
____
PFM Asset Management LLC
email kaunea@pfmam.com | phone 415.515.6389
**Note: effective 9/18/2021, my email address has changed to kaunea@pfmam.com
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Agenda Item 7
DRAFT For Finance Committee Review: Resolution Approving the
Revised Reserve Policy

Following is the DRAFT Staff Report to be presented at the January 27, 2022 SBWMA
Board of Directors Meeting for Finance Committee Review and Feedback
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
Joe LaMariana, Executive Director
John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager
January 27, 2022 Board of Director’s Meeting
DRAFT For Finance Committee Review: Resolution Approving the Revised Reserve Policy

Recommendation
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2022-XX attached hereto authorizing the
following action:
Resolution approving the revised Reserve Policy as found in Exhibit A.
Summary
Staff recommends revising the Cash Reserve Policy to formally include a Sub-Emergency Reserve for Self-Insurance
Fund to be utilized in the event of a property insurance claim to cover a portion of the deductible on a claim. The
Finance Committee recommended increasing the emergency reserve in response to an increased property insurance
deductible and call out this reserve balance on a separate line item. The Sub-Emergency Reserve was first recognized
with the approval of the FY2020 Budget and was calculated based on the property insurance premium cost savings
realized by increasing the insurance deductible. In the subsequent two budget years, the Sub Emergency Reserve has
been increased by the difference in property insurance premium between a $1 million and $1.5 million deductible. The
most recent property insurance coverage was approved by the Board at the June 2021 Board Meeting and carries a
$1.5 million deductible.
Budgeted 2022 Reserves
Table 1 (below) shows the final approved FY2022 budget reserves. The Sub-Emergency Reserve – Self Insurance
Fund balance is $394,875 for the close of the FY2022 budget year.
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Table 1
FY2022 BUDGET: RESERVE BALANCES
APPROVED
MID-YEAR
BUDGET
BUDGET
FY2022
FY2021

Variance to MidYear Budget

UNCOMMITTED RESERVE:
RATE STABILIZATON (9% of expense)

$

EMERGENCY RESERVE (9% of expense)
SELF INSURANCE FUNDING ACCOUNT
CAPITAL RESERVE

4,895,294 $

4,843,485 $

(51,809)

4,895,294

4,843,485

(51,809)

319,875

394,875

75,000

7,696,287

6,242,014

(1,454,272)

UNDESIGNATED RESERVE
TOTAL UNCOMMITTED RESERVES
COMMITTED RESERVE
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT (ANNUAL)

$

17,806,750 $

16,323,860 $

$

766,789 $

766,789 $

TOTAL RESERVES

$

18,573,539 $

17,090,649 $

(1,482,890)
(1,482,890)

Table exludes Shoreway Remediation reserve

Current Policy Description
The current cash reserve policy encompasses five designated reserve accounts as follows – the purpose of each
reserve does not change in the new policy:
The Rate Stabilization Reserve is to set aside funds to minimize Transfer Station rate increases resulting from
significant one-time revenue shortfalls (e.g., commodity price decreases, loss of tipping fee revenues due to short or
long-term closure of the Shoreway facility, etc.).
The Emergency Reserve is to address limited capital needs or significant one-time increases in Shoreway operating
expenses as a result of damage caused by natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, or other community emergency
scenarios that are not covered by existing insurance policies. Notably, we currently do not have insurance coverage for
damage from a seismic event, flood damage, and damage caused by an act of terrorism. Seismic insurance coverage is
reviewed annually but has been declined by the Board due to the high cost (i.e., last quote was $450,000 per year with a
10 percent deductible). We do maintain coverage for fire; natural gas explosion; a plane crashing into our property; and
weather related damage from wind, lightening, or a severe storm.
The Equipment Replacement Reserve is a sinking fund that is funded annually and then drawn down as monies are
needed for major MRF equipment capital repairs, and eventually for partial replacement of the single stream processing
equipment within the Material Recovery Facility (MRF). The Equipment Replacement Reserve covers the expected
equipment replacement costs after the assumed 12-year depreciable life of the single stream processing equipment
installed in 2011 plus any significant one-time equipment repair (wear parts) costs not covered in our Shoreway capital
budget. Per the Operations Agreement with SBR, the SBWMA is responsible for any repair expenses to stationary
equipment when the repair for a single item exceeds $10,000.
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Capital Projects Reserve is intended to fund future capital projects that need to be funded over a term longer than one
year and cannot be absorbed by one budget period. The proposed balance and use of this fund shall be approved by the
Board as a part of the annual budget process based on a five-year capital project plan.
Undesignated Reserve shall hold any excess funds after the above reserves are fully funded.

Background
The policy was revised at the May 23, 2013 Board Meeting to reflect more clarity in defining the purpose and use of each
reserve account. Key changes were made to the reserve policy as follows:




Maintained two previous reserve accounts (Rate Stabilization Reserve and Equipment Replacement Reserve)
and replaced the Operating Reserve with an Emergency Reserve Account.
Changed the priority order of the accounts so the Rate Stabilization Reserve is first in priority followed by the
Emergency Reserve.
Excluded certain operation expenses (i.e., Shoreway buyback payments to customers and door to door HHW
collection expenses) in the calculation of the fund levels for each account (i.e., up to maximum of 10% of
Operating Expenses) for the Rate Stabilization Reserve and the new Emergency Reserve.

The policy was further revised at the November 15, 2018 Board Meeting to establish a Capital Projects Reserve
intended for future capital projects. The previous policy combined the Undesignated Reserve with the Capital Reserve,
and the 2018 revision made these two separate reserves.
Fiscal Impact
There is no direct fiscal impact from maintaining the reserve policy other than its intended when needed and approved
by the Board. A change in the reserve policy could have a one-time impact to tip fees at Shoreway if the reserves are
increased or decreased.
Attachments:
Resolution 2022-xx
Exhibit A - Proposed Reserve Policy (2022) with red-line edits

SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 01/11/2022

AGENDA ITEM: 7 – p3

FULL PACKET PAGE 75 of 88

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-XX
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE RESOLUTION
APPROVING THE REVISED RESERVE POLICY
WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) last revised the Reserve Policy at
the November 15, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting.
WHEREAS, the current reserve policy does not fully meet the needs of the SBWMA, and
WHEREAS, the revised policy establishes a new Sub-Emergency Reserve for Self-Insurance Fund, and
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby approves
the Revised Reserve Policy as found in Exhibit A of the Staff Report.
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management
Authority, County of San Mateo, State of California on the 27th day of January, 2022, by the following vote:
Agency
Belmont
Burlingame
East Palo Alto
Foster City
Hillsborough
Menlo Park

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

Agency
Redwood City
San Carlos
San Mateo
County of San Mateo

Yes

No

Abstain

Absent

West Bay Sanitary Dist

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-XX was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of the
South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 27, 2022.

ATTEST:

Chairperson of SBWMA

_________________________________
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary

SBWMA FINANCE COMMITTEE PACKET 01/11/2022

AGENDA ITEM: 7 – p4

FULL PACKET PAGE 76 of 88

Exhibit A
SBWMA Reserve Policy – 202219
This policy replaces the previous policy approved by the Board in 201913.
The purpose of the Reserve Policy is to establish reserve funds to meet known and estimated future obligations or
unknown events causing economic or physical disruption. This policy establishes the level of fund balances and
the process whereby funds may be spent. The source of all SBWMA funds are tip fee revenue and commodity
revenue.
After meeting all normal operating and debt service obligations of the SBWMA, the following reserve accounts
shall be funded in the order of priority as shown below:
1. Rate Stabilization Reserve of up to a maximum of ten percent (10%) of budgeted operating expenses. This
fund is available to help minimize Transfer Station tip fee increases resulting from significant one-time revenue
shortfalls (e.g., commodity price decreases, loss of revenue due to short closure of the Shoreway facility, etc.).
Staff shall propose use of this fund when warranted which will be approved by the Board during the budget
approval process.
2. Emergency Reserve of up to a maximum of ten percent (10%) of budgeted operating expenses. This fund is
established to make limited emergency capital repairs and reconstruct the Shoreway facility buildings and
infrastructure that may be damaged by natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism, or other community emergency
scenarios that are not covered by existing insurance policies. Such capital expenses would be those that could
not be funded through an existing capital budget. This fund is also available to cover significant one-time
increases in operating expenditures associated with the above scenarios.
2.a. Sub-Emergency Reserve – Self Insurance Fund is established to be the first fund utilized in the event of a
property insurance claim to cover a portion of the deductible on a claim. It was established at the
recommendation of the Finance Committee in response to an increased property insurance deductible and is
increased annually based on the recommendation of Finance Committee and approved by the Board as part of
the annual budgeting process.
Use of these funds are approved by the Finance Committee on an emergency basis and subsequently approved
by the Board at the next Board meeting.
3. Equipment Replacement Reserve is established to replace single stream MRF processing equipment based
on a 12 year replacement schedule as recommended by the manufacturer. This reserve would also be available
to fund any significant one-time unanticipated equipment repair (wear parts) costs not covered in our Shoreway
capital budget. Use of this fund is for the actual replacement of existing MRF processing equipment above the
$10,000 maximum responsibility of SBR for any single item of equipment repair.
4. Capital Project Reserve is intended to fund future capital projects that need to be funded over a term longer
than one year and cannot be absorbed by one budget period. The proposed balance and use of this fund shall be
approved by the Board as a part of the annual budget process based on a five-year capital project plan.
5. Undesignated Reserve shall hold any excess funds after the above reserves are fully funded.
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All reserve fund levels will be approved each year as part of the adoption of the fiscal year budget. During the
budget process, projected net cash flow, reserve balances, and debt covenant requirements are considered when
budgeting Shoreway tip fees which are the main source of reserve funds.
Operating expense for the purpose of funding the first two reserves are defined as all cash expenses including
Shoreway operations, SBWMA program, bond interest and franchise fees. Excluded are non-cash expenses such
as depreciation. Also excluded are any expenses that are 100% offset by revenue from the same source such as
the now defunct HHW program.
It is important to note that the first two funds 1 and 2 are basically static funds with minimal annual changes.
Going forward, these balances will be established each year as part of the adoption of the fiscal year budget. Ten
percent is not added each year – this is the fixed limit.
The third and fourth fFunds 2a, 3 and 4 are cumulative funds as cash is added each year to reach the total
amount needed and depleted by the approved and designated expenditures.
If a reserve fund is utilized to the extent the Board concludes that the fund requires replenishment, a plan to
replenish the reserve over a three year budget cycle to an appropriate level is to be established.
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Agenda Item 8
Review and Provide Feedback on the SBWMA’s Operating Budget Data
tables
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Board Members
John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager
January 11, 2022 Finance Committee Meeting
Review and Provide Feedback on the SBWMA’s FY2022 Operating Budget Data Tables

Recommendation
Review and provide feedback on the SBWMA’s FY2022 Operating Budget Tables
Summary
At the October 12th Finance Committee meeting, Staff received direction from the committee to includie nonrevenue and non-expense cash flow transactions to the financial summary table and reserve table presented in
the Budget Staff Report. As directed, Staff included these items as illustrated in Table 1 and Table 2 below in the
presentation to the Board at the October 21, 2021 Board Study Session. During this meeting, Board Member
Froomin questioned the presentation of this data within the financial summary (Table 1). Staff responded that the
non-revenue/expense items in the lower section of the table were included at the suggestion of the Finance
Committee, but that Staff would bring the tables to the Finance Committee for review and feedback.
San Carlos’ enterprise fund wastewater budget including non-cash items is provided Attachment A for reference.
Table 1

Categories
Total Revenue
SBWMA Program
SB 1383 Compliance
Shoreway Operations
Total Operating Expense
Non-Operating Expense
Total Expense
Net Revenue and Expense

FY2022 FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FY2021
FY2021
FY2022
Variance to
Adopted
MidYear
Proposed
Mid-Year
Budget
Projection
Budget
Budget
Variance %
$55,081,566
$56,820,993
$54,828,615
(1,992,378)
-4%
$4,074,617
$3,977,634
$4,136,100
$158,466
4%
$927,000
$489,813
$1,532,835
$1,043,022
213%
$ 44,739,778 $ 45,042,409 $ 43,625,994 $ (1,416,414)
-3%
49,741,395
49,509,856
49,294,929
(214,927)
0%
4,650,763
4,660,567
4,521,576
(138,991)
-3%
54,392,158
54,170,423
53,816,505
(353,918)
-1%
$
689,408 $ 2,650,570 $ 1,012,110 $ (1,638,460)
-62%

CHANGE IN NET RESERVE POSITION PROJECTION

Categories
Net Revenue and Expense
less - non-Bond Funded Capital Expenses
add - O2E Project Payment from Bond Fund
less - Debt Principal Pmt Current
add - Grant Revenue - County
Change in Net Reserve Position Projection

FY2021
MidYear
Projection
$ 2,650,570

FY2022
Proposed
Budget
$ 1,012,110

($950,000)

($1,190,000)

$1,250,000
($1,225,000)

$0
($1,305,000)

$500,000
$2,225,570

$0
($1,482,890)
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Table 2
FY2022 BUDGET: RESERVE BALANCES
MID-YEAR
PROPOSED
BUDGET
BUDGET
FY2021
FY2022

Variance to MidYear Budget

UNCOMMITTED RESERVE:
RATE STABILIZATON (9% of expense)

$

EMERGENCY RESERVE (9% of expense)
SELF INSURANCE FUNDING ACCOUNT
CAPITAL RESERVE

4,895,294 $

4,843,485 $

(51,809)

4,895,294

4,843,485

(51,809)

319,875

394,875

75,000

7,696,287

6,242,014

(1,454,272)

UNDESIGNATED RESERVE
TOTAL UNCOMMITTED RESERVES
COMMITTED RESERVE
EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT (ANNUAL)

$

17,806,750 $

16,323,860 $

$

766,789 $

766,789 $

TOTAL RESERVES

$

18,573,539 $

17,090,649 $

SHOREWAY REMEDIATION PROJECT

$

1,233,640 $

1,233,640 $

proof

$

(1,482,890)
(1,482,890)
-

Bond Project Fund Balance is projected to be approximately $11 million at the close of FY 2022
Mid vs. YR17

CASH FLOW TO TOTAL RESERVE BALANCE
Beginning Balance
add - Operating Income

$
$

less - non-Bond Funded Capital Exp
add - O2E Project Payment from Bond Fund
less - Debt Principal Pmt Current
add - Grant Revenue - County
Ending Balance

$

16,347,969 $
2,650,570 $

18,573,539 $
1,012,110 $

(950,000)
1,250,000
(1,225,000)
500,000

(1,190,000)
(1,305,000) $
-

18,573,539 $

17,090,649 $

(642,702)
1,451,850

829,206

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact associated with this review.
Attachments:

Attachment A – The City of San Carlos’ Enterprise Fund for Wastewater Budget
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CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

CITY OF SAN CARLOS
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STAFF REPORT
To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

SBWMA Finance Committee Members
Joe LaMariana, Executive Director
John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager
January 11, 2022 Finance Committee Meeting
Bond Project Fund Refunding Balance Report Out

Recommendation
This is a discussion item only and no action is required.
Summary
The 2019 Bond Project Fund contains a balance of $12,196,211 as of December 31, 2021. A detailed fund
declining balance is illustrated in Attachment A.
Background
In August 2009, the SBWMA issued $53,500,000 tax-exempt Solid Waste Enterprise Revenue Bonds, Series
2009A to fund improvements to the Shoreway Environmental Center. The 2009A Bonds were callable on
September 1, 2019 and, under tax law, were eligible be refunded on a “current” basis on or after June 1, 2019 (90
days before the September 1 redemption date).
In July 2019, the SBWMA issued Series 2019A Green Bonds to refund the $44.6 million outstanding Solid Waste
Enterprise Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A to achieve Present Value debt service savings of approximately $10
million. Series 2019B Green Bonds were issued to raise $20 million in new money proceeds to fund
priority capital projects of the SBWMA. The Series 2019 Bonds also funded a Reserve Fund and pay cost of
issuance associated with the offering.
2019 Bond Project Components

Cost (millions)

Materials Recovery Facility Equipment Improvements

$

15.58

Organics to Energy Pilot Project

$

1.25

Other Capital Improvements

$

3.17

Total

$20.00

Attachments:
Attachment A – 2019 Bond Fund Declining Balance
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Attachment A

2019 Bond Fund Declining Balance
Beginning Fund Balance $
Project Spend Category
BHS 1 ‐ Design and Engineering
BHS 2 ‐ Milestone 2 Equipment down pmt
BHS 3 ‐ Milestone 3 Equipment Progress Pmt
BHS 4 ‐ Milestone 4 Install Deposit
BHS 4 ‐ CO #2 Mid‐Fraction Bypass/Glass Cleanup
BHS 5 ‐ Milestone 5 Equipment Progress Pmt
BHS 6 ‐ Milestone 6 Equipment Shipment
BHS 7 ‐ Milestone 9 Install Progress
BHS 8 ‐ Milestone 10 Install Progress
BHS 9 ‐ Milestone 7 Tenth Shipment
BHS 9 ‐ Milestone 8 Shipping Payment
BHS 10 ‐ Install Progress
BHS 11 ‐ Install Training and Startup
BHS 12 ‐ Performance Test
BHS 12 ‐ Retention payment
BHS 12 ‐ Sales Tax

20,000,000
MRF Phase I
502,151
761,090
554,649
372,673
137,652
554,649
554,649
372,679
372,679
554,649
88,290
372,679
167,114
258,723
258,723
420,920

Anaergia 1 ‐ Polisher
Anaergia 2 ‐ NTP, Engineer Fabrication
Anaergia 3 ‐ 4 Month NTP Engineer
Anaergia 4 ‐ Commence Shipping
Anaergia 5 ‐ Install Completed
Anaergia 6 ‐ Commissioning Completed
Anaergia 7 ‐ Acceptance Test Completed
Electrical ‐ CO 1
Equipment Modifications ‐ CO 2
Protection wall ‐ CO 3
CalRecycle Grant (net of fees)
San Mateo Grant (proceeds and receivables)

Total

Fund Remaining
Organics to Energy Pilot

1,200,000
292,500
682,500
292,500
292,500
292,500
97,500
300,000
121,496
68,324
(1,140,000)
(1,000,000)

6,303,969

Project X

12/31/2021
$ 12,196,211
Total Spend
$
502,151
$
761,090
$
554,649
$
372,673
$
137,652
$
554,649
$
554,649
$
372,679
$
372,679
$
554,649
$
88,290
$
372,679
$
167,114
$
258,723
$
258,723
$
420,920
$
‐
$ 1,200,000
$
292,500
$
682,500
$
292,500
$
292,500
$
292,500
$
97,500
$
300,000
$
121,496
$
68,324
$ (1,140,000)
$ (1,000,000)
$
‐
$
‐
$
‐
$
‐
$
‐
$
‐

1,499,820
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